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A HISTCRY OF THE WIGAN COALFTELD
- '...#" o
By C. J. Bouthworth, Apprentice Surveyor,
for Fﬁning Technology Frojeet, O.NiD. 2,
1975/ 4% .

I have chosen the history of the Wigsn Cozlfield as the
subjeck of my project beceuse I heve for =z long time been interested
in the erigin and uses of the vericus old sheffs, minersl reilweys
and other colliery surface esteblishments which, before reclamationm,
were very much 1in evidence in the Wigen district. I hed resd various
gmell exrticles on the Grest Haigh Sough, the shaft sinking st
Rosebridge Colliery and other famous locel minimg engineering projects,
and, living at Hindley and heving algc a great interest in Geology,
I began to explore the local countryside for outerops snd lobking
around any old colliery sites thet I cazme gercss. Finding these
dérelict buildings, shafts and former railway tracks gave me an
ambition te find out ebout their history, ownership, area of
working etce. and when the projeet for O.N.D 2 was set and each PeTrson
was given a free hand, I jumped at the chance to satisfy my ambition
by making it my project.

GEOLOGY OF THE WIGAN COALFIELD

Few aress in this country were more richly provided with
accesgible coal seams, and few have been more extensively worked
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over the cemburies. I think we ghould define the Wigsn coalfield as 4
that srea lying between the Great Uphollsmd fault on the west, the ._¢ﬁq
Scot lane fsult on the east, the ocuterop of the Fountsin seame in ‘ .
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the north and the Bickershaw lsne and Agueduct faulte in the south.

This ares comprises approximate 70 square miles, and falls a2lmost

wholly within a redius of five miles from the centre of Wigsn. From

this small territory, if it is reasonable to hazard an estimate,

something in the order of 725 millicnm toms of coal have been extracted.
* The number of all kmown shafts which bave been sunk in the ares is no

lesg than 1,013, t

Mining of coal took place mainly in the Middle Conl Messures, ¥
rticularly from the Arley, Heigh Tard, Cannel, Wigan Four Feet, k.|
mberton Four Feet and Crombouke seamg, all of which were of .

excellent quality. In the early history of the gas industry, at the
latter part of the nineteenth cemtury, the famous Heigh Cennel was
uged extensively for gas production, one ton of nann:% Yielding
about 7,500 cubic feet of gas. The Arley snd Haigh Tard coals were
used for many years in the manufacture of hiEh-gra&n coke. In the !
Lower Coal Measures the Mountain seasms heve been worked %o some _
extent on the outcrops at Billinge and Chorley, prﬂdunin§ excellent '
coking cosl, as well as a high-grade fireclay from the floor of

th; E:ami which has been uged for the manufacture of refrsctory

bric ete.

The maximum number of seams svailable is twenty-sgix (listed on
next psge), which very in thickness from two to seven feet.

# The Hi%un coallfield is extensively fasulted. The direction of
=the msin faults is parallel to the Pennine Chain (thst is, in a
H.N.W.-8.8.E. direction), and the resulting blocks of strata are
again shatiered by cross—faulting. The main faults run fairly
parallel to each other and are approximately 1,506 yd apart. They
are the Femberton fault, a downthrow to the east, varying in throw

'-I:
Bt o |~ E T




&

from 250 %o 400 yd; the Bhevington fault, running from Edge Green to
Heskin, a downthrow to the east of €00 yd; the Gients Hall feult,
runnipg from Abrem o Standish, a downbthrow to the west of about

€00 yd; the Bt. Cstherine's fault, which passes by Amberswood

Common under St. Catherine's Church in Wigen to Boars Head, a
downthrow to the east of 160 yd; and the Grest Haigh fault, running
past Bickerghaw colliery, Kirkless Haigh and Ellerbeck, a downthrow
to the west of 600 yd.

LIST OF SEAME IN THE WIGAN COALFIELD
Hame General Thickness

RTDING
PARK YAHD

INCE YARD

BINN or BULLDOG

INCE DEEP YARD

CROMBOUKE or INCE FOUR FEET
TNCE SEVEN FEET

THCE SIX FEET or FURNACE
FEMEERTON TARD

PEMEERTON FIVE FEET
PEMBERTON TWQO FEET
PEMBERTON FOUR FEET
WICAN FIVE FEET

WIGAN FOUR FEET

WIGAN TWO FEET

WIGAN STX FEET or TRENCHERBONE
PEACOCK

‘CARNEL

ETHG

RAVINE or PLCDDER

HATGE YARD

BONE

SMITH

ARIEY or ORRELL FOUR FEET
UPFER MOUNTAIN

IOWER MOUNTATH

SANDROCK

THE RY

Wigen is the oldegt borough in Lancashire. Indeed, it is among
the first tenm boroughs in Englsnd, havi received its borough charter
in the firet yeaxrof the reign of Hemry I, in A.D. 1100. Wigsn was
already then an estsablished township; it held a strategic position
covering the crossing of the River Douglss, and the town commsnded
the main routes to the north and east. Here, King Arthur hed fought
four of his grestest fights ageinst the Ssxons; eéarlier, the Romans
hed made it a militery post, under the name of Coccium; and before that
it wes probably a Celtic settlement.

Througheut 1ite history the town has proved vigourous in ite
allegiances; indeed its motto is “"Ancient and Loyal". Tt was seven
times plmndered during the Civil War on sccount of its loyalty to the
cause of King Charles; the inhabitants showed forthright support for
the Mayor and Corporaticn against externsl authority, amd it was an
early centre of trede unionism. I mention these things briefly in
order to suggest the spirit and temper of a people who were ss resdy
to accept the hazards of mining as their other sdventures.
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For a long time, the local use of cosl was extremely limited.
This iz surprisingly remsarksble, considering the great qunnt1t1us
of coal which lay =0 close st hand.

Turf wss The chief fuel, and remained soc for a long time.The
reannn why turf was preferred &= not hard to find. It was largely
% to the large %tracts of moss land present which supplied the
p&u e with fuel procured sasily with no detrimental effect on
agr:l.culi;ur&:l. land. Also preference may have been given o turf on ﬁﬂ
account of the more arcmatic and less sulphurous smoke given off
in the days of drsughty chimney-less rooms.

Records snd disputes relating to much inferior materials |
such as turf are very common, but Those to coal very few. In the .
whrly days coal was moat probably used in the burning of lime, ‘-‘

which was transported on Hhe backs of "lime-gals”, @alloway ponies,
for use in building places of importance or for manure. The coml
would probably have been obiained first by "drifts","day-eyes", or
"bre&at-hlghs" in places where the seam cropped out at the suriacn

o hillsides,in those parts of the counbry where turf was inmccessible,
and next in placan where it could be delved or dug in "delfs", quarry=-
like cpenings in waste ground belomging to to the Lord of the Manor. -
Tensnts of sgricultural land weren]t entitled to open delfs to get
minerals without arranging a rﬂynlty peyment with the Lord, while
commongrights mey interfere with explorstiomns in waste grounds.

In &nqulrlns or inquisitions held affer the death of persons,
into their possesions or heirs, little notice was taken of the mineral
resources of The deceasedls proptzty. We constantly find mess 8BS,
mills, fisheries, gardens, orchards, land, meadow, Efaturi, We
underwood, briar, moor, moss, furze, heath and marsh set dowm but
seldom coglmines.

Caesar does not mention cosl smong the treasures of Britain
but there is little doubt that it was worked to some axtent before
the Romans. 4 coal axe was found in Monmoubh by Fennant and coal
gnd sshes were [ound in romen stetion:ruins.

The twelfth century wes far advenced before tThere were any
religble indications of & commencement to bring coasl into some use.

By 1307, coal was being dug, doubtless on = small scale, in most of
the coelfields of the esst, south and west.The only patrons at first

were smiths and limeburners then brewers and dyers for their furnaces

At the beginning of the fourteenth century, the coal trade was
growing %o s small extent on the Dee eéestuary and small workings at
points in the infterior supplied coal required in the immediste
district.

About the middle of the gixteenth century, Dr. EKsye (founder
of Cajus College, Cambridge) spesks of coalpits in Northern England;
"the unwholesome vapour whereof is so pernicious to hired

labourers that it would Immedistely destroy them if they did not
get out of the way as soon as the flame of their lamps comes blue

and is consumed”

Furning to Lancashire and Cheshire, noted coal crops to the
surface at many places and the combustible gualities must have been
known at an early date. Several of the early charters mention
"minera carborundum”, mines of coal, as existing in the neighbourhood
and there is mention of a dower made at Warringtom in 1350 in which
miners cerborundum are mentioned s2 existing at Burnhill in Ashton
in Makerfield. Also in one of the Standish deeds, dested 50th Hovember
1350 is & reservation of "Fyrston" (fireatone) nnd "Secole" (sea-coal)
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"if it be possible to find them within the preperty abt Shevinglton,
%3 miles north-west of Wigan -

Prom ILelapds Itinerary of 1540:
"Mr BEradeshan hath a place caullid Hawe a myle from

Wigen. He hath founde moche Canel like Se Cole in hi=s grounde very
profitable to him"™

In 1575-6 Edward Fleetwood, clerk and parson of Wigan, filed
2 bill in the Duchy Court complaining thet,"Charles Banke, Robert
Asxteley, Ralfe Fayrebrother and Heynold Maudesley since Michselmas
last past had entered into one parcel of waste ground known as
Whelley Lane ccnbtaining 12 acres and lying om the east part of a
parcel of the said menor called the Sc¢oles, with force and wronge, mnd
thereof have by like force and wronge disseised and expulsed your
seid Orator and (deprived him) of the proffittes thereof in digginge
coale pythes and taking coales out of the same te a great value
had sppropristed the same to their cwn use.”

On the 30th May, 1595, Parson Fleetwood preferred a bill in
the Iuechy Court complaining that the Mayor and esses of Wigan
. "have unlawfully digged, delved and made myres for coules in
divers parts of the Demesnes of the said Mannor or town of Wigan
without the assent of your seid Orator, whereby the roads thereof
are made impassable." '

Im 1e00, there was 2 coalpit being sunk, probably om the property
of Ralph Worsley, of Worsley Hall and Worsley Mesnes, Pemberton and
Wigan. An ac¢count of the expenses shows the sinking and the merry—
malking at findj the coal, at the removel of the stone and water,
and at the scouring of the pit. It shows the prices realised, which
indicate twe gualities snd the oubtput was apparently about 25 horse-
loads per day.

Probably the first pit dug within the township of Wigen was
that of cne Peter Flat, a chandler, in Millgate, in 1619. The site
of the pit is imn faect beneath the Wigan and Distriect Mining and
Technical College building and the shaft was exposed when the foundations
were excavated for the building of the College. Eishop Eridgemsn,
then rector of Wigan, and Iord of the Manor recorded the granting
of a licence to drain the water from the pit inbto Millgate. Tn the
next year he records as followa;—

January 7th 1620,

"Ann, the widow of Peter FPlat comes to me with
Roger Bullock and Bayliffe Jolley desiring me to give lesve to cast
the water which springs out of their new dug cole-pitt upon my waste,
for they say that the waber riseth so faszt in their said cole-pitt
on the side of Millgate Street, as unless they may be suffered to
emptye it into the street that s¢ it may run down into the river, they
can make no benefit of their coles. Therefore they offer Lo give me
52 shillings yearly rent, that is te say 12 pence every week, and
50 loads of coml which they will dig for me out of the pitt smd lay
for me on the greound fit to be carried, yearly, ¢ as I will suffer
them to cest the welter from their said pitt upon myskreet, and he
also offers to peve the way all along so0 as the water so cest out
ghall not hurt the said highway, but will from time to time keep it
in good sort so long as any coles shall be diged out of the said
pitt, and will so leave it.L"

By September, of that year, widow Plat's pit bad, he sarys,
_ "now so filled uwp with springs of water and, as
?hﬁ can get no one to emptye it, so fast does The water come in, and
== 0= .
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therefore she is enforced to leave digging coles there and hath stopt
up the pitt three weeks since: and so she desires a discharge from
paying any more rent for the said cole-pibt ......”

The pit was retrieved, however, by her son Oliver Plat, who
a year later got approval to dig a second pit lower down this street
to drain the water from it.

The growth of coal mim within the town in the next few years
is well illustrated by the following entry in the Bishop's Iedger:

"Whereas I em given to understand that divers inhabithants
within the Towh and Burrow of Wigan have presumed to dig for coles
under the wastes and streets thereof, I do now forbid all amd every
of the inhabithants of the said Town and Manor to dig for Coles or
make any soughs under any of the streets or any part of the waste,
within thet Town and Manor; as they will answer at their perills™

Dated at Lever, 17th September, 1635.
"This prohibition I sent by Mr William
Erown, gentleman, to the curate of Wigan to be published by him in £ he
chureh on Bunday next.”

The Civil War 11642 - 1649

A few years later saw the beginmning of the Civil War when Wigan
and Warrington lent strong support to the Ear]l of Derby and the Royalist
cause. The Earl's femily seat st Isathom House, some ten miles to the
West of Wigan was the last atron@hold in England te fall to the Parliam—
entary Iorces. The Eerl of Derby's memoirs describe how, during the
famous two years siege of Lathom House in 1644-45,

"The® which proved a great relief to them was plenty of fuel,
for the colliers being set to dig by way of trial, found coals and
water both in abundance within the house to their great comfort, the
water in the mote being spoiled end rendered unfit for wse by the enemy.”

The colliers were more tThan 2 match for the assaulting engineers,
for it is described that upon the North side of the house, which was
the lowest ground, Major Morgan, the Farlismentarians engineer;

"ran a deep trench near the very mote, hoping thereby to lay
it dry and then Tc undermine the house, but there being within it scome
skilful colliers, who had as much experiencef of drawing off water as
he was master of, and they being employed by the govermor o oppose
him, they always wrought counter to him, and keeping full chambers
of water above him, they st pleasure opened them =nd drowned both
bis works and his men, to their entire diseppointment and confusion

Before and after these civil disturbsnces, pits were being
extensively worked st Haigh end Agpull by Bradshaigh of Haigh and
liyles Gerrard, and by the Worsleys, the Winstanleys, the Orrells, and
the Bamkes, the Sherringtons and others in the Winstanley and Orrell
district. There was no stopping either, the digging for coal within
the town of Wigan, and in the Wigan Court Leet records there nore
several complaints sround the year 1700 of undermining and obstruction

of the highway, nuisance to neighbours and trespasses in the getting
af coal.

Disputes between owners of neighbouring pits were frequent.
There sre many examples among the Duchy of Lencaster Pleading=, such
as the compleint of William Orrell in 1598 that EKatherine Sherrington's
workmen had tunnelled under the highwsy and stolen his coal, =nd had
smoked out his workmen with straw. Katherine on her part alleged that
William had dug & hole and flooded her pits and obstructed her ecarts.
The Orrells had doubled the price of coals so that she,




"having a coal pit in her said close, opened up the same for
the good of her poor meighbours and not for any profit to hergelf,"

a very lsudable object. She won her case, but complained
again of the Orrells having shot four errows at her; they were obvicusly
poor marksmen, as she was apparently still sble to complain.

Drainage and ventilation of mines in those days was assisted
by "soughs", which were tumnels driven from the valleys to meet the
coal seams &t higher levels. A dispube recorded between Eradshaigh
and Gerrard, which was contested im fhe courts from 1634 to 1636, arose
partly from the problems arising from floodimg and from trespass.

It was claimed the® Gerrard's men from Aspull were being semt with
cendles during the night into the Haigh workings to teke measurements
secretly, to steal coal from pillars, to set fire to them or to
wealken them s¢ that the places fell in. Gerrard complained that water
from the Haigh workings was floodingshisz pits and that the extrs
weight of water was destroying his sough. The evidence, however,
eppeared to support Eradshaigh’s contentiom that the sough fell in
due to poor workmanship and leck of msintenance by Gerrsrd's men.

This is only one among many such cases recorded, snd by 1740 the
possibility of trouble from deliberate flooding was considered so
sericus that an Act of Parliament was passed,

"Whereby anyone maliciously damaging his neighbour's mine by
water was subject to pay treble damagesz end full costs ......."

In 1673, R. Blemes' Britannia states that Wigan is famous for
the choicest coal in Englsnd, called Cannell. Dr. Ehnrlts Ieigh, in
his Natural History of Lenceshire and Cheshire and The Feak in
Derbyshire, — Oxford, 1700, mentionsg;

"the EKennel Pits at Haigh and the cosl mines sdjscent to Fathom®
and states tThet,

"Coal and Kennell mines are alw found in strata ghelv
towards the centre or ss the miners call it, Dipping, insomuch that
the seam which in one part perhaps cannot be discovered under Twenby
Fathoms, iz yet at the rise of the mine freguently found near the
surfece of the ground. If the mines lie im any considerable strata,
or ag the workmen style it, ly true, their usual dip is East or West
or,as they vulgarly word it, to the Twelve-s-Ulock or Four-a-Clock
sun. If the luxuriant sgprings of acidulae did not ly in this shelving
pasture, the guantities of water would be too great for any engine
to digcharge.

The vagmwe notions of Geology then prevailing are shown by
his remarking that;

"Ne specifick gravitation is ocbserved; for cegls, strata of
marle, coal slats always ly promiscuously. Prom which it is evident
that in their subsidence they were not determined to any specifick
gravitation”.

About t*g_ggggnﬂ%ggﬁpf-thi eighteenta century, the great drawback
to the ILancsshiTe coal 1 ﬂﬁff{“began To be remedied. Under an ack
passed in 1720, the River Douglas was rendered navigable, so zs to

afford a cheap outlet for the cosml tressures of Wigan. Tt vas in-1720
also, that the Hersey and Trwell were made navigable up to Manchester.

The Duke of Bridgewater had long contemplated converting
Worsley Brook inte s canal from the Irwell to the important coalfield
Horth of Worsley snd in 1759, an achH was pessed to cut & canal between
the Irwell and Worsley Mills as preferable to canalising the Brook.




In 1755, an act was passed for forming the Sankey Cansl to
provide the Haydock coslfield with a welerway.

In a pamphlet (about 1790) advocating "& proposed cansl
from Eendal to the Duke of Eridgewateri canmal leading to Manchester,
it was stated that by extending the canal to Eendal, s want of
cosl and csomnell will be more plentifully supplied for limestone
in exchange. The coal would be brought from the coal districts
between Chorley and Worsley.

Fir. Chadwick's coal near Chorley lies in different beds 7 feet
thick, Mr Norriss's 9, Mr Iiveseyds 9, Standish 16, Blackred 20,
Arley 20, Haigh 46, Cannell 3, Sir Thomas Gerrard's 5, Fr Halliwells 5.

Abouk 5 months ago a fresh mine of ceoal 9ft thick was discovered
at Haigh which dips ome yard at twenty."

In 1767, the Leeds end Liverpeol Canal was projected at a
capital cost of £260,000. Work commenced inm 1770, and in 1791 the
canal was being constructed from the Liverpool Camal nerth of
Ormskirk to Wigan.

With the comstruction of the cansl Wigan beceme increasingly
importent as a coal-m and engineer centre, and the prosperity
and accessibility of the town led to still greater developmend i
of the pits and coal trade.

Some time after the completion of the Wigan branch of the
Leeds and Liverpool Canal the mines at Stendish were directly
connected te it by an underground canal. The work was arranged as
one of the conditions of & lease from Charles Townelsy and Edward
Towneley—-Standish to the Stendish Colliery Company dated Z6th
Jamusry, 1798, which required that an open cut or trench, and a
sough or tunnel, be made from the ¢anal between Wigan and Liverpool
to connect with the mines under Standish, during the First 25
vears of the term of the lesse. Quoting from this lease it is
stated that:

"This sough or tunnel to be on a level with the said canal
and to be of such dimensions and to conbain such a quantity and
depth of weter as wes usual for receiving or admitting boats and
vessels of seven feei wide and drawing the same depth of water a=z
+he boats and vessels usually navigated upon the said canal between
Wigan and ILiverpool, s¢ as such parts of the said mines hereby
demised ss shall then remain ungot may be won, recovered, raised
and made dry".

Thig canal was constructed snd used for meny years To transport
the coal from the underground workings to the Wigan and Liverpool
Canal and also to drain the water from the mines.

The underground portion of it was a continuation of an open-cut
branch canal commencing from the Wigan and Liverpool Camal at Crook.
At the Standish end it went underground abeut 600 yd to Taylor pit
shaft, where it intersected the Ince Seven Feel seam at a depth
of 100 ft from the surfasce and continued northwerds for a further
500 yd in coal. The seam was worked extensively to the rise, the
e¢oal being brought in beskets to an underground wharf in the pit
and disc ed directly into the canal boats. The boats were propelled
by the men lying on their backs, putting their feet om the roof
end "walking" the boats salong. -

It was not in use in 1845 es the original Ordnance Burvey
Maps of that date mark it as "old tumnel®™. Possibly the development
of railways was responsible for its relling into disuse.
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The two main problems which confromied the early mining
engineers were drainage, as I will describe later, and secondly,
the limited means of transport which restricted the marketing of
the coal which I have partly covered under the section on camals.

In the eighteenth century the prinecipal means of transport
was by horse and pannier, and later, when roads were better, by
horse and cart. But these means were soon unable to cope with the
incra;sing tonnages. The need for better tramsport led to the
construction of tram roads from the mines in the vicinify of Wigan
to the River Douglas.

TRAM ROADS

The most important of the tram roads were:

a) A tramway serving both the collieries =nd the flag-stone
guarries, which ran from Ashurst Beacon to Gathurst.

b) Hustlers tramway, from Billinge Hill to the River
Douglas at Gathurst.

¢) Clarke's tramway, from Winstanley to the River Dougla=s
at Crooke.

'd)} Wingtanley tramwey, from Billinge to Goose Green and
Wigan (Wigen Pier).

e) Standish colliery tremway from Rebin Hill to Crooke.

These tram roads were used o carry the coal to the River
Douglas, which was rendered navigable by cutting canals across the
bends formed by the winding of the river.

In sddition to these tram roads, constructed in the second
bhalf of the eighteenth century, several "wsgon roads" were constructed
by Blundell in the Orrell district to service his collieries there.
Some were joint-owned lines with other coal-owmers. For ingtance,
there wag an agreement between Hustler and Blundell for the construction
of wagon ways o¢ver the lands each ether had in lease,

"for the purpese of conveying the coals of each to the River
Douglas snd the Leeds Canal.™

In connection with the making nevigeble of the river, the
entire cost of this was borne by one public-spirited individual,
Aldermen Alexesnder Leigh of Hindley, who resided at Hindley Hall.
His intentlion was to make Wigan a great inlend port. The Douglas
Navigation Bill became law in 1720; work on the river began in 1758
and was finished a few years later, being engineered by Thomas
Steer.

The Douglas Havigation Company contracted with the colliery
owners in Orrell for the supply of 800,000 baskets of coal, each of
72 1b, at 38.2d. a score of baskets,; onto the banks of the Douglas
near Gathurst Bridge (which wag the discharging point of Hustlers
tramway ). Competition in the ceal market wes keen and in 1743 the
Havigation Company were seeking to restrain the colliery owners
from disposing of their coals by land-sale st Poulton; they had
evidently developed overland haulage in competition with the water-—
borne trade. The Navigetion Company was of some importance ss is
ghown by the fect that one-half of a thirty-sixth share was sold in
1746 for £112 172. 64.
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RATINAYDS

. The rapid development of the Wigam coslfield at the beginning
of the nineteenth century reguired the provision of still better
transport facilities. This development, together with the imvention
of the steam locomotive, gave impetus to the construction of reilways
in soufh-west Lancashire.

Itis interesting te note that Fr. E. Daglish, a local engineex,
claimed to have constructed a steam locomotive in 1815. This engine,
which wes said to be the first to work in Iancashire, was used to
work the trains on Clark's tremwey which ran from the collieries in
Winstanley and Orrell to Crock. This would probably be shortly
after William Headley comnatructed, im 1813, the firat practical steam
locomotive in Durham, the famous "Puffing Billy". Mr. Deglich was
concerned for it to be accepted that his was the first locomotive,
gnd the fellowing is from a record in Wigen Library:

Orrell Cottage, near Wigan. April 1st, 1856
To all whom 1T maY comcern:

This is to certify that I made the first leocometive Engine
in Iencaghire in the Fesr 1812 snd put it into setion fthe
btﬁinming of 1813 on an extensive Golliery under my direction
belonging to the lLste Jobhn Clark Egg., in the township of
Orrell near Wigan for the comveryance of coal and by fTrains of
wagons from his Colliery mear Orrell lMount to the ILeeds and
Liverpodl Canal which was upwards eof 1& years before any
IccomotivesEngines were put fairly in action om the Liverpoel
and Manchester Reilway.

{signed Robert Daglish)}

THe fiFst® reilway st Femberton (Blundell's collieries) was
constructed in 1827 of irom rTeils and stone sleepers to a gauge of
four feelt. There wWas a gradient in favour of the loads which aversged
1 in 80 from the Bye Pit to the Pier heasd af Seven Stars, Wigan.

There were branches to The Bottom Venture, Fo. 11, and Farzymens pifs,
the distance from the latter to the canal being 5,300 yards. A wWagon
way helcuging t¢ Martha Ann German, a neighbouring cosl proprietor,
ran closely parallel te Blundell's line through what is now known as
the Newtown district.

When the Liverpool — Bury line was built in 1841, Richard
Blundell comstructed a new system of wagon roads to the standard
gauge of 4 feet 84 inches. Iocomotives were purchssed to replace
horses and by 1852, three were in use at Pemberton. At that time the
rnl%ing stock copsisted of 389 wagons, mostly with a capacity of 3z
to tong.

A men nmeamed Joseph Hilten., borm in 1849, recollected that an
old man, describing the speed of the "Iron Horsze", said he used %o
run &t a slow trot slomgside it when old Will Pwink (William Paylor)
was driving it by the Bell (a district in Pembertom). This district,
it is thought, takes its name from the bell erected at the road and
rail erossing, which was rung when the locomeotive wes sbout to cross.

The cast iron wheels from the wagons used on the railway were
often used for fendeirs in front of the fireplaces in the locsl public
houses. The spokes and hub were broken out and the rim and flange,
which were of cest irom amd aboub 30 in. in dismeter, cut in half.
The local story is that they were =0 used becanse their weight made
. 1% impogsible for them %o be used in the fights which often occurred
when the local colliers went on the “spree”;

-




@

_ This was the inning of the railwey era, and several Acts of
Parliament were pessed in quick succession for the comstruction of
railways in the Wigan distriect.

THE DRAINAGE FROELEM

The Wigan Coalfield has long been troubled by immense problems.
It was very susceptible to large water makes, particularly in the
Horthern helf. The mining engineers of the period, however, devised
fairly effective methods of de-watering the strata.

The Soughs

Iavel drainege tunnels, or soughs, as they were Imown in
lancashire and adjacent countiesz, were used from early times to
keep mines free from water. These were particularly suitable in
hilly country, but where the seams were feirly flat, the soughs
drained guite large areas of coal down to the lower levels of the
local brooks, even though the surface did neot generslly rise steeply
away from the brocks.

There were guite a number of These soughe operating locally.
OCne of the longest was the one that drained the seams from Hawkley o
Smithy Brook near the Bye pit at Fembertom, and this was 1§ mls in
length. I%s construction was begun by Willism Mollineaux of Hawkley
about 1797. Williem Benke's eighteenth century sough, discovered in
recent years during the working of tThe Wigan 5 It seam st Summersales
Colliery, Pemberton, was over half a mile in length end was driven
four feet square in stone and about two feet wide and the same height
as The seam when in coal. These soughs were driven on comtract by
gangs of men who specislised in this work.

When the seams above the level of the soughs were exhausted,
and it became necessary to sink pits deeper, pumps were installed
which, whenever poassible, in order to save power,delivered the water
inteo the sough apd not to the surface of the pit.

The Great Haigh Sough

One of tThe outstanding mining engineering achievements of the
seventeenth century was the construction of Great Haigh Sough from
the River Douglas %o Park pit in Haigh by 8ir Roger Bradshaigh,
which was completed in the year 1670.

This sough or tumnel, wventilated by ten vertical shafts, was
constructed to enable the Cannel under Haigh to be worked without
fear of inundation from various old workings which were full of water
The total length of the sough from the cutlet in the brook at Bottling
Wood to Park pid was 1,121 yd. The sough was later extended to
Fothershaw pit 1n Aspull, probebly in 1856, and later still, after
the formation of the Wigan Coal & Tronm Co., to & distance of 4,600 yd
from the cutlet to Aspu pumping pit, where pumping engines of the b
beam type were installed in 1874. These pumps delivered aboub
1,400,000 gallons per day into the sough. Pumping was discontinued in
August, 1952. Thus the originel tunnel constructed by Sir Hoger
Bradshaigh hes been used in the draining of the Haigh end Aspull
mines for nearly 300 years, snd it still functions to this day.
Indeed the wor from Dairy collie were drained to the sough,
and in 1958 were delivering 180,000 gallons per day into the river.
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Amongast the 'Haigh Celliery Orders', an esrly sttempt at
mining legislation, there is an entry by Sir Roger Hradshaigh
giving this advice on the maintenance of the Great Haigh sough:

"let thear all wayse bee taken to spoynt some psons(persons)
to go gquitve Through FThe Mayne Sough every two montha a2t least to
prevent Decsise in tyme, that the benefitt ef my 16 years Labour,
Charge and Patience (which it pleased God to crown with success for
me and my pesterity) mey not bee lost by Neglect”.

This advice, given =0 long ago, wWas faithfully cbserved until
a8 recently as 26th July, 1925, when it became impossible any longer
to travel the sough owing to subsidence.It had long entailed travelling
in parts up to the meck in water. in entry made in 1907 in his diary
by RE. Hart, whoe wes then shaftsmen at Haigh and hed the duky of
travelling the sough, gives a laconic description of the experience:

. "Went through this sough from Bottling Weed to Wash pit om
Sagtamhar 20%h/07, leaving Bottling Wood at 8.52 a.m., at Bed
9.6 a.m., arriving at Gilberts Close 9.15 a.m., Ieaving Gilberts
Cloge 10.17 a.m. arrived st Park pit 10.37 a.m., left Fark pit st
10.55 a.m., arriving at Wash pif 12.10 p.m. R.Hart, B. Ieigh, and
J. Makingon went through from Bettling Woed to Gilberts Close and
d. Valentine, H. Gibgon and G. Webster from Gilberis Clogse to Wash
pit. It took 2 hrs. 26 minutes to go through. 1 pint Whisky allowed"™.

Y menticoned in ceommection with this sough the closing dewn of
the Aspull pump gtation in 1932, and it iz in recent memory how
this led to the floeding of the Westhoughton Coal and Cannel Company's
pits and To an important lawsuit.

The collieries which werse flooded after pumping cessed were
those in The area bounded by The Great Haigh faulft on the west, the
SBcot Iene fault on the east, the oufecrops in the north and the Bickershaw
Igne fault in the south. As well asz the Westhoughton pits they
ine¢luded Scot Lane Collieries, Stott's pits, and the Crawford,
Rose Bridge and Tndusffious Bee pits.

The water problem in this part of the area was allways ene of
difficulty, buft with the unification of ownership it was posasible
to dewater graﬂuallr the Westhoughton and other workings invelved
and to enable some of the upper seamsg to be worked.

Ingtallations such as the Aspull pumping station were needed
when the seams above the level of the soughs were exhausted gnd it
became hecessary to sink the pits deeper, pumps were installed,
which, whenever possible, in order to save power, delivered the
water into the sough and not to the surface of the pit. .

_MINTHG METHOTS

—_—

In the early days of mining, the coal was worked by the
excavation of small Eﬁta up tnlgg feet in depth at the cutecrop and
at very shallow depths, by bell pits.

Gf the pits dug in the 16th, 17th and 18th ecenturies, it is
recorded that the cost for sinking ome in 1600, zmounted teo a total
of £3 : 28 : Pd; it being started on March 3rd and coal being dug
on March 16th. Powards the latter part of bhe 16th century, the
pits were being dug or more correctly, sunk, to a depbh of 70 To
120 feet. The usual cosgt for one of these was sbout £50 te £100.

It i= an interesting fact that during the working of opencast
coaliin this area, during the past few years, numercus remsins of
old workings, many in an excellent state of preservation, have




been encountered st very shallow depths below The surface.

In connechion with pifs in the Winstenley and Orrell area,
there is a record that in 1678, a new pit wes sunk and cost
£22 : 158 : &6fd. There is s remark to the effect Fthat the cost was
far more than usual owing to the depth of the pit and the rise of
the grouwnd, the pit being 24 yds deep. These early Iits were
naturally limited in depth by the necessityiof providing means for
the removal of water, the practice being to sink the shaft on rising
ground and dig & drain or sough, as it was termed, from a level so
a8 to drain awey the water Ho lower ground.

The normal custom was to work ceal oubtwards from the shafts
until the rceof showed szigns of collapse, snd then the shafi was
gbandoned =nd snoether zshaft sunk down to the zesm elsevwhere. This
was found more comvenient then to sprag, prop, end wall extensive
roads underground. The coal was filled into corves (cireular baskets),
and placed on wooden sleds and dragged to The shaft boltom. Horse
gins were usually used for winding the coal.

; Ag these shallew workings were exhausted asnd the demsnd for
cosl increased, deeper piks were sunk snd more careful plann

became necessary. The rough and ready methed of working deseribed
before prevailed right through until the commencemeéent of the deeper
shafts about 1800. The Haigh Colliery Orders showed that systemstic
methods of working were being instituted by the middle of the
seventeenth cemtury.

surveying was in its infancy, but this was still 200 years
before the first Watiomal Ordnance Survey maps were produced. Among
the Orders there are records of depths worked, dip of seams, and
the amount of fall available for drainsge purposes to the Great
- Haigh sough, but there is no reference to maps or working plans,
and generally there do not appear to be surface maps extant from
thizs period excepht those made in comnection with leases or lawsuits.
We read, in the Haigh Colliery Orders, this description of a parcel
of Cennel for future development, and of some prospective purchases,
which indicate the commercial instincts of these pioneers of mining
in the Wigan field:

"Theare is snother steger hole boerd te the Cammel a 1ittle on
the Right hand from the last Clost by the Neoke of the Copy; neare
the Ditch wheare in theare is a Axle sticks up. Betweene the Rough
Hey and the Kilme Medow nesre & Yo Ash tree wh. growse in the
hedge, theare is an end wough or wall of Cannel, which bends down
towards the Copy Woodg and theare is an ould Pitt only wants opening
aboute 4 Roods from the hedge in the Rough Hey, in or against the
ould Copy Pitt.

Thet if any gett Cannell (without great necessities) past
Whitle or Muncksley tenement that they will probably lay Canmell
Iry in Grelsy Tenement, and one W. Shaws land, new in the possestion
of Roger Erowne.

It weare happy if Browne's Tenement could bee bought before
they had notice of Cannell wch. they yet know nothing of.

Thear is reason to beleeve that thesre is Canmell in Rigby's
of the Corsses, wch Joymes to my owne, I wish it could be
bouwght (or the Cemmell) at a venture.™

The achievements mede in Winstenley &nd Heigh in planming
and develcpment in the eighteenth century, despite the lack of the
“instruments and technical resources available today, are the more
remarkable when it is remembered that up %o the middle of fhe
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nineteenth century the method of trenspert underground depended on
the use of gravity or on manhandling. The diagram accompanying shows

a typicel example of The bord and pillar method, used in working

the King snd Cemnel seams in the eighteenth century. At the Patcheroft
and Bawkhouge pits in Haigh in 1845, when the system of development
had then been practised for at least Iirtz years, the levels were
carefully set out, more or legs parallel to each other, on a slightly
rising gradient, and each aree was mined in succession. The development
panel was well in advance ef the Eruiuetinn district, snd a roadway
which was used as a drainage level was said to have bLeen travelled
until the year 1880. Bawkhouse shaff wasz the pumping shaft, the

water being raised by a beam pump to a sough which delivered into

the River Douglas. The quantities of coal being vaised per annum

in 1866 from the two pite were 40,000 tons from Patcheroft and 30,000
from Bawkhouse.

For many centuries, the method of mining was the bord and
pillar system, but by about 1900 the longwell face was becoming Hhe
accepted method of working in the Wigsn area.

YENTTLATTON

Tt wag normel in the days of the bell pits te let down a
lighted candle into the sheft to discharge aceumulations of gas.
Explosions of firedamp in the workings were a frequent ha =
Reports by the menager and overseer at Haigh in 1&5& (quoted by the
late Esrl of Crawford from the Eradshaigh papers) illustrate the
dangers, and the fortitude of the colliers inm facing them. Tm Augu
the manager wriftes that "the fiery damp went off twice . . . but did
1little hurt". A month later, the overseer writes to Sir Roger: "They
will tell you much of the fiery damp. It's very strange it shoeuld
trouble them now when it has not appeared st there first opening
the pitt. Tido believe it will let thep alone if these Enaves will
let it alone, for there is more aire nmow than there ever was for
four against it" (this probably means over and inst it). Two days
later he reported that the firedawp had gone, which as he remarked,
was "a great happiness . . . if dark it wd. have been more tediocus”.

But in any case, apart from the firedamp,these were hard days
end the cost of cendles was to be watched. A hindred snd fifty vears
later, the Commission of 1842 reported that in the pits on Aspull
Moor children worked from five o'clock in the morming to six at
night, all the time in enftire darkness, as candles could not bhe
afforded for them. §

ENGIREERTNG AND MECHANIZATION

Adem Welker, the inventor, writing in 1792, remarked that Wigan
produced many excellent self-taught mechanics, snd mentioned as an
example Dick Mellimg, who simplified the steam engine, gave a
windmill an equable motion end the means of turning itself to the
wind, designed and constructed a bucket engine which drained a
valuable cannel mine for many years at a small expense, and invented
many other contrivances of such a kind.

Pite in the Wigan district were among the first in the country
to employ engines for pumping. There iz a record that about 1710
Iﬂyari Holme of Upholland ‘hed sn engine in his pit, probably for
raising water.

Walker Eros of Wigan designed and duced in 1869 a disc

machine which was Tha the firat cutti machine o be .to
work in a coal miﬂargn this country. It wa;nﬁt Ladies E&nl GEEEler




in Hindley and Mr Peler Higson, E.M. Inspector of Mines ,writing to
the Manchester Guardisn and Times in December, ‘1869, described the
machine as follows:

"The machine is 7 £t & ins long, 2 £t wide, and 1 £% 9 ins high.
The cubters are 2¢ ins long, fixed on the circumference of a
horizontal wheel project 2 It 7 ins beyond the side of the
mechine which comnsists of two cylinders, each 7 ins diameter, worked
with compressed air st an average pressure of 18 1bs on the square
inch. Inen hour it holed along & working face 2 ft 4 inches in a
hard bapd under the coal, and 79 ff in length. The maximum rate of
holing was 3 £t 9 ins in a minubte.”

Mr. Higson in his letter alseo refers to Bidder's hydrsulic
press, used o break down the coal, which apperently was an éarly
type of hydrauliec burster.

Another disc mechine, described as the Winstenley coal-cuftter,
was &t work in Platt Iane colliery inm 1872. This also was driven by
compressed air, workimg at 22 lb, and we are Told that the depth of
cut was 33 in., height of undercut 2% in., thickness of the seam 28
to 35 in., length of cut 110 yd per shift, snd oubput 75 Tons per
ghift. With 22 men employed (driver, 2 assistents, 15 rippers and
fillers, % drswers, and engineer and firemsn half-time), the district
0.M.5. was apparently some 68 cwh,

The earliest coal-washing plant in England was erected at
Marsh House for the Wigan Coal & Tron Co. betweemn the years 1880 and
1885. This was a gis washer of two seperate units, and it continued
gt work until 1935. The great bulk of the VWoodshaw dirt heap, near
Eirkless, is formed of the discard from the Mexsh House wesher, amd
is now a lendmerk dividing Aspull and Hindley.

&
iy —

The next part of the project deals with the history and progress
of Blundell's Collieriesa., one of the moere prominent cosl concerns
in the Wigan area during the nineteenth century. Tt traces the
development from the Blundell's early enterprises in the eighteenth
century to the build uwp of extensive mining operations in the
Orrell, Wingtesnley gnd Pemberton areas. 2 T oge of the sectilom
is %o fill in the gap in the history ¢of The co ield from about
1800 to about the early 1850's. Ta it are detailed the wages and
conditions of work of the persons anpln{ad at the pitas, the dispubes
and disturbances that they caused and also the eral progress of
Blundell's colliery business which may be a Euig:ntn what was
happening in The rest of the coslfield.




BLUNDELL'S COLLIERTES

; the first quarter of the twentieth century, Pemberton
Colliery was The est colliery in Tancashire. It was one of fhe
22 biggest out of 2670 collieries which Britain boasted in 1925. The
only Lancashire ceollieries which sapproached it in size were Abram,
owned by by the Abram Colliexry Co., Mosley Common, owned by the
Bridgeweter Colliery Co. and Bickershaw, owned by Ackers, Whitley
and Co. Bickershaw is new & very large unit of the National Coal
Board as was Mosley Common umtil ift's closure in 1968.

In 1925, Pemberbton Colliery still belonged %o the great-great
grandchildren of Jonathan Blundell, merchant and freeman of ILiverpoel
the founder of the Elundell Collieyy concern. Jonathen was the fourth
son of Alderman Bryen Blundell, merchant and msster mariner, ome of
the founders and chief benefacter of the Blus Coat Hospital in
Liverpool, and said fo be the greatest "Skallop Racer”™ from the
Mersey to the West Indies. There are mpny entries in the Liverpool

tation Registers of ships owned by Bryen end his family.
According to J.A, Picten, the ILiverpool historian, he was a Protestant
descendant of the Roman Catholle BElundell's of Ince Blundell.
Jonatfhan and his brothers owned or were part-owners of several
privateers during the eighteenth century and old ledgers kept in
the head office of the collieries at 7 Romford 8St. Liverpool umftil
the 1920's gave details of transacfions in gold-—dust, ivory and slaves
as well s coal.

The first step taken by Jonathan ftowards & stake in the Tich
Wigen (oalfield is recorded in a Winstanley estate deed.

"On or abowt 1774, William Earle the elder,Bamuel Werren and
Jonathan Blundell, together with Edward Chaffers of Liverpool
agreed to become partners under the firm of Samuel Werren and Co.
in the buying of eoal and cannel from the several mines near the
River Douglas and carrying the same in flats, barges snd ofther: boasts
or vessels E{Emaans of thet navigetion snd the ILeeds end Liverpool
Cangl for = and digposed thereof at ILiverpool...... About the
month of April that year thery entered into contrect with Thomas
Doncaster, James Hudson and Holt Ieigh for all the canmell to be
gotten during the term of 7 years from September st next in the
estate of Kirkleys (ikirkless) in Aspull, Ince and Wigen not exceeding
7000 tonsg in the yedar at the rate of Hd per basket."

Fioat of The beskets in use at thet time in the district
would seem to have had & capacity of 1} cwits. Thus 54 per basket
would give & price per %ton of 5s 6d. In November 1792 we are told,

"coals are so0ld in Orrell at 44 per basket each 13 owks.™
This is equal to 4& 54 per tom.

Buying coal from pits under other ownership was clearly
much less profitable thap producing and selling their owm, and not
long afterwsrds Jonmathan and his friends became colliery owners.
Micheel Jackson, owner of Orrell House Farm, and colliery, lessed
the colliery to them in 1776, apd when he wen®t bankrupt in 1780,
Jonathen bought him out. The colliery continuéd under the style of
Warren and Co. umbtil 178%; then the firm became known as Blundell
and Co. and we hear no more of Warren, Esrle and Chaffers. At that
time it was the largest colliery in Orrell employing 13 colliers
(hewers) in 1781, 16 in 1783 and 118 in 1784. When Jonsthen Blundell
and his partners took over the colliery im 1776, the rate paid =t
Orrell to a collier for getting, filling end drawing a "score"” of




24 baskets, each weighing 150 1bs., was 1z 0d - an almést exact
equivalent to 744 per ton. The average amount of coal produced by
each collier per day was two "score" so that an averasge week's

wage was 128 Od. for a six-day week. Men on day wege recieved 8s to
10s a week, but girls, youbhs and ¢ld men got frem 4s Od to &s Od4.

Inthe lean years after poor harvests, when the price of bread
rose, colliers wages were often insufficient to provide food for
their families. Ceonsequently there was much unrest which very often
lead to ricting, guelled only by the calling in of troops. The first
of these riots in Orrell and Pemberton that we kmow anything about
ocecurred in 1779, when food prices were high. Perhaps colliers were
not imvolved in this, because the main object seems to have been
the smashing of some of Arkwrights spinning frames in Femberton.
Thirteen years later, however, there wes agsin much unrest, and
Henry Blundell, who was then & partner in the Orrell Collieries
with his father Jomathan, snd was also r of Liverpocl, wrote to
Willism Pitt, the Prime Minister, in April 1792 about the threat of
the journeymen carpenters to pull down the houses of people agiteting
for the abolition of the slave trade, if they were successful'in
getting that trade ebolished. Blundell's house was not threstened,
however; as he and his father and brothers were engaged in the trade.

Blundell also wrote to Henry Dundas, the Home Secretary,
regexding the masters of the cosl flats on the rivers end canals:

"There seems t0oo general sn appearance of discontent amengst
all artificers and labourers, which must be, if possible, prevented
from spresding inteo tumult. Annexed is the copy of of s note I have
this moment recieved, which comes from & large body of men, and we
must either comply with this demand or be guarded against the
consequences. The other owners of collieries and flats in this
neighbourhood heve recieved a like notice.

Liverpool
26th. May 1792."

Enclosure.

"The masters of the coasl flats in your employ do hereby
give notice that they will not proceed in the seid flats after the
ninth day of June next ensuing, under 1/- per ton per trip - which -
they hope you will sgree snd consent to give, without any stop being
put to the ssid business, as we are determined not to proceed under
that price from thet date.”

Dundass replied that:

"Although there may not be any immediate disposition to riect
smong these people, it appears from your representation, that you
should be watchful over their conduct and thst you should pursue
every legal and constitutienal means of suppressing such combinations
and bringing the leaders to punishment. From the disposition which
has recently been shown by a certain class of people at Manchester
it is not conceived to be advissble at this moment to remove
part of the troops now there from thence, unless in a case urazg;nlute
necessity and if such necessity should hereafter exist, of which you
must of course be the most competent judge, the Commanding Officer
at that place will have instructions %o comply with any regquisition
fromvyeu for a detachment from the forces under his orders®

In the followi October there was trouble at the collieries
at Orrell, and Blunde again applied to Dundas for troops.




"The agents Irom the extensive collieries in the neighbouhood
of Wigan ( on which the town Iiverpool de s for its fuel)
came this evening with the news of the colliers having left their
work and collected in a rictous manner to the number of near five
hundred, and bhad been with them thus asgembled teo demend sn extrav—
agant aﬁvunnn of wages, They have given them o till tomorrow at
3 ©'clock to consider of it and if their demand is not compliied
with, they thresten to destroy the Works by pu up the engines,
throwing down the wheels and filling up the pits. conseguences
to the coal proprietors would be very serious snd to the country im
general, if This combinetion is not immediately suppressed. I am
requested by the coal owners who are now with me to entreat of you
to give orders to Major Campbell znd the Commanding Officer at
Menchester] to march part of their men %o Wigen in sid of the
Magistrateg."

Dundes instrueted Major Campbell to give,

"every ascistance in his power tec the Civil Megistrates in
preventing any mischief™

He also remarked that such combinations had lately become so
freguent that it reguired more than ordinary exertion of the civil
power to suppress them and they should enforce a rigid execaticn of
the law, sgainst those on whom it can clearly attach. The strikers
had only been out for two days when Blundell again wrote to Dundas:

Liverpool
Zrd October 1792

"I returned this meorning from Wigan....Our grand gbject is
to save cur steam engines for drawing the water. No material mischief
had been done last night bub they threatened much for teday if their
terms were not complied with. A goecd collier and his drawer can at
present earn from 5/- to 8/- per day between them mnd if we were to .
comply with their demends the advance would be near 2/~ per day more."

These esrnings are nearly as high.as those a collier and his
drawer got a hundred years later in 1892 at Blundell's Pemberton
Golliery. The appearance of the military had the desired effect, and
on 10 October the colliers began to return to work. No demsge was
dons to The engines; they were prevented from working for two days.

"but from which I expect we shall nome of us sustain any
material injury.

Many colliers end cannellers from distant works hsd come to
observe the progress of our people and had they succeeded it would
certainly have spread far over this country.®

In 1774, Jonathan gnd hisz partners purchased two closes of
land at the north end of Old Hall St. Liverpool, near the canal.
Shortly afterwards, Jonathan built a large house there, on the ground
floor of which he opened his first coal office.

The coal mines apparently prospered, because the number of
employees increased year by year. In 1789, accord to the lend tax
returns, they were employing 24 miners, & number o exceeded in
CUrrell by Messra. German & Co. By this time, Jonathan's son, Henry,
was helping to run the colliery business and in 1791, he snd his
father took out their first lease of coal Bir Robert Holt ,Leigh of
Hindley Hall, who bhad a lerge estate in Orrell, and, after the death
of Jameg Hudson, took over the working of the Ince Cannel Works.

The pew lease from Sir Robert was for the Orrell Four Feet
Beam, under Edge Hall @state near the present-dsy Orrell gtation




and under Cetterall's farm at Kitt Green. The next extension of
Elundell's mining interests was the leasestaken out by Henry Blundell
and two pertpers, John Menzies of Liverpocl, "Gentleman"™ and John
Harvey of Orrell, "coal master™, for &0 Cheshire acres of Orrell
Four Feet Coal under land belomging to the Reverend Thomas Holme

and extending from Abbey Imkes on the east side of Dean Wood %o
Orrell House Farm boundary. The colliery which the Company subsequently
worked here was known as the Chein Colliery, and it was from the
Chain and Edge Hall or S8lycroft Collieries that Blundell raised a
company of picneers to serve with the Liverpcool Volunteers, in which
he wags a lieutensnt-colonel, during the Napoleomie invagion scare.

The accoutids for the Orrell Fire Engine Colliery on Sir Robert's
esteate, near the present Old Engine public house and adjoining
Blundell's Chain Colliery, have been preserved &t local collieries imn
the second half of the eighteenth century. In 1772 there were three
pits and the oubtput for the week ending 11th April that year was as
follows: Eiﬁhan‘s pit, 3% score 1 basket; Berry's pit, %2 score 12
baskets: Park pit, 12 score 20 baskets: in all 78 score 7 baskets
at 150 in per basketrand 26 baskets to the score. This amounts to
127 tons for the week, snd ab annual output of 7,000 tons. This was
produced by 12 colliers. Assuming sn 11 day fortnight, these figures
give sn output per man shift on the face of two tons. There were
elso three winders, three browmen, 6ne smith, cne engineman and the
aunditor or manager. The overall O0.M.5., therefore would seem %o have
been about 24 cwis. From the fact thet there was only one engineman,
the pumping engine could only have been worked one shift per day,
which of course could have lasted frem 10 te 12 hours. This pumping
engine, probably a Newcomen engine,used 2 toms 5 cwhis of cung during
the week, and 9 baskets were used to keep the brow fire b
Fark pit whichwas 42 yds deep. Concessionary coal was supplied to all
workmen at 2 baskeiz per week.

In 1791, when He Blundell and his father Jonathan had taken
over the Ince Cannel Works at Kirkless nesr Wigsn, Cennel commanded
a higher price than coal, but it was harder to get and & higher
scorage rate had to be paid. Weekly score sheet=, signed by John
Harvey, the agent, for the cannelers at two of the pits st Blundell's
Works at Ince, have been preserved. They cover the period from
Michaelmas 1792 to Lady Day 1795 and show that the masimum smount of
canne] produced in a week of six days by cone man (a Christopher
Santus) was 9 score at 24 baskets of 150 lbs tothe score which is
equal to ‘1%.4 tons or 2.4 tons per day. The sverage wes ve muach
less than this however, at 1.43 tons per day. Getting cannel was an
unenviable task as, after it had been holed or undercut, pieces
burst off the face due to pressure, and, while it was being holed,
sharp splinters of it flew from the pick point. For this reason,
gauza mgsks were used by cannel getters in the cannel seam at Ince

uring the latter part of the nineteenth century. A cannel getter's
faiiinnq body generally had more blue merks from this cause than s
collier's.

During the 25 weeks under review, the pits were idle for eleven
odd days. These included Michaelmss, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New
Year's Day and Ledy Day. In addition to these holidays there was &
considerable amoumt of absenteeism: for instance, John Greenm asbsented
himself on 23 days, James Miller on 27 days and Henry Etock on 21 days.
This was typical ef all the cannelers.

A cash ledger of the last decade of the eighteenth century has
recently been found among the Blundell family papers. It covers the
activities of the Orrell Collieries and the Ince Cannel Works, and




gives us a number of misecellansous but interesting facts. Blumndell
sent practically all his Orrell coal toldverpool either along the
canal or the Dougles Navigation. Hie Liverpool sales increased from
£9,737 in 1788 to £27,508 in 1800. He also sent camnel from Tnce o
Iiverpool - his price waried from 8z 44 per tom in 1792 %o -10s &4
per ton in 1799 - and much smaller guantities of 'slack' snd 'eoal
charcoal'. The weges and stores bill at Orrell Collieries reose
rapidly from £2,0Y7 in 1788 to £7,806 three yearsz later. At Ince
Cannel Works it varied between £1229 in 1791 apd £2,197 in 1800. When
John Harvey, the er at Ince, alse toock over the management of
Orrell Collieries im 1796 he received & salary of £100 per anoum.
Hie ssles agents in Wigan, John Martlew and Ralph Ackers earned £50
each. These were considered to be reasomable wages, bubt Blundell's
profits for the 13 years from January 1788 to December 1800 totalled

£12,08%.

Jopathan Blundell, who had been in failing health for some
time, left Liverpool imn 1796 to take up residence at Blackleyhumst
Hall, Billinge. He died on 11 December 1800 and left £200 to the
hogpital, £100 to the "lunatic asylum', and £100 to the Sunday
Bchool in Heather lane, Liverpool. To each of his three daughters
he left £5,000, sand begqueathed the same sum to John Blackburne, the
widower of his dsughter Mary. To his son Thomas, whe had gradusted
at Brazenose Coll and weas a clerk in Holy Orders, he left the
advowson of Halgall Church. To Henry he willed the rest of his
estate with all the freehold and leaseheld property.

Very soon efter his father's death, He Blundell's colliexy
expire expanded again. Jobn Hollinshead of Hollinshesd Hall,
Tockholes, died im 1802, end left his estate and colliexry et Elackrod
to Henry on condition thet he assumed the name and arms of Hollinshead.
He slsc bequeathed him £1000 and his shares in the Grend Trunk '
Canal. To Alice Blundell, Jonathens widow, he left £200. About thig
time Henry began to take an interest in Pembertom: he paid land tax
on property there im 1800. He gradually bought more land, mostly
in the Highfield district of Pemberton esnd carried out a bering
progranme in the search for coal there. The ainking of the Pemberton
Engine Fit and Bye Fit began sbout the year 1815. These formed the
nucleus of the great establishment which was to develop on the same
site and they were in use until recent fimes. They were sunk to work
the high grade Pemberton five feet snd four feet seams. Very shortly
afterwards, the Brickcroft Pits were pubt down %o a feirly shallow
area ¢of Ince Seven Feet coal noerth of present day Pemberton railway
station.

Considerable amounts of water impeded impeded the sinking of
the Engine and Egtrgitu thre the two hundred feet of sandstone
known asg the Pemberten Rock. o large Cornish beam engines were
installed, one a fewwyears after the other, Ho work 1ift pumps in
the shafts. The first of these was scrapped in 1875, but the second
onme survived %ill 1932. An inscriptien on the 30 foot long beeam of
the latter stated that it was made at Heigh Foundry in 1820. IF
generated about 160 hp and, together withithe foundstions and all
the pit shaft work, must have cost an encrmous sum ¢f money.
According to a Haigh Foundry price list of 1819, now in the Crawford
Collection in the John Rylamds Library, a 50 hp engine sost £1,870.
Between ‘1815 and 1827, eleven shaftz were sunk at Femberton.

gshafts had been sunk in Orrell, Winstanley and Pemberton
before Blundell began operations there. The majority of the ear.
shafte in Orrell were sunk %o work the Urrell five feel seam. T
seam, over the greater portion of Crrell lying to the west of the
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Pemberton fault, is mowhere more Than €0 yis deep and is often found
at much shallower depthe. However, with the opeming up of the Orrell
four feet seam, ©5 ydz below the five feet, during the second half
of fhe eighteenth century, much deeper shafts became necessary,
Blundell's Chain Colliery ine Pit, sunk towards the end of +the
eighteenth century, was 860 feet deep and rectangular in sectiod,
approximately 9 feet by six feet. Other shafts sunk at Blundell's
Orrell Collieries were generally & feet to 7 feet in diameber although
there was at least ome oval ome 8 feet by 5 feet. All these shafts
were unlined, except for a few yards at the top lined with stonework
or 9 inch brick work.

Galloway states thet gunpowder was not used for sinking in the
Hoxth-East coalfield before the lagt guarter of the eighteenth
cenbury. It is obvicus from am account bock of 1788 onwards that
Blundell was using gunpowder st that time and presumsbly for sinking.

1789 Te Jonathan Blundell Senr. for Pine Balks + Gunpﬂwd&rsﬁ _E

WO

1790 E w " " for Timber + Gunpowder 39 19 3

A xu:prininglgﬂllrga number of shafis were sunk by Blundells,
up to at lesst Ho. in Orrell. The policy seems to have been to
keep well shesd with sheft sinking, so that when a shaft became
uneconomic, owing to lemg drawing, bad ventilatiom etc. a mew one
was down to the coal to replace it.

As his Orrell Collieries became exhausted, Henry Blundell
began te open up his new at Pemberton where the aflorementionmed 11
shafts were = before 1827. A quoted rate for sinking in that year
was 188 per yard. Depths were sgein increasing, the Pemberton Engine
Pit being & feet to the sump and Ferrymans p{t 555 feet. The Bre
Pit, 390 feet deep, took 179 weeks gnd % days to complete — an average
progreas of just over 2 feet per week. This pift was sunk before the
invention by Eickford of the ‘patent fuse, and the shots would have
to be fired by means of squibs made of straw or paper and filled
with fine gunpowder. It iz clear that there would be mis-shots in a
shaft as wet as the Bye Pit. Diameters incressed with depth, the
Engine and Bye pits being 9 feet 6 in diamefer. Both of these shafts
were lined except near the top.

Up to 1827, all c¢coal from the Pemberton collieries had been
landgale, or hsd been carted to the nesrest point on the cansl ab
Seven Btars, Wigan. However, for 1827, & time book, preserved in
Wigean Library, records & number of payments for the drilling of stone
sleepers, and Blundell Hollinghead, as he wis now kmown, began in
that year to construct a railway from No. 6, or Weod, pit, running
past Bye Pit and Chain, or No. 7, pit to the Leeds and Liverpeol
canal at Seven Stars Eridge. It wes later extended to the Ferrymans
and Venture pits. The gauge of this reilway wss, from the evidence
available, four feet, and the long straight length down what iz now
Vietoria 5t. Hewbtown, is shown on the 1 Ordnance SUTrvey map =8 an
inglined plane. AL the canal end of this rellway, a boabtyard was
opened for the construction and repair of boats, because Blundells
bad their own canal boats. ;

Blaclkrod Colliery, fortunately situated on the banks of the
Ieeds snd Liverpool Canal pnorth of Arley EHall, had no transport
problem, and in Orrell, Blundell and Co. had comstructed & wagon
road from Orrell House Colliery to the canal at Gethurst as esrly as
1776. NHothing is Imown of wagon Toads to Blundell's other collieries
in Orrell, bui Clarke's snd Hustler's tramways ran cloge to these
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collieries and it is possible that Blundell acqguired rumning rights
over them.

Henry Elubdell Hollinghead died on 8th Pebruary 1832. His gon,
Richard Benson Blundell Hollinshead tock over the collieries end
initiated major developments during the next few vears.

First, he completed the purchase of Highfield - Highfield

House and the remsining 8 Cheshire scres — from Bedford Ke n, the

dson and heir of Robert Kemyom, who had died at Highfield House
in 1801. Bedford Hemyon had raised money on mortgage from time to
time, and the need %o meet contingent lisbilities compelled him to
part with Highfield. By this time, the Orrell Collieries had finished
but en extension of Edge Hall under the Bridgewster Trustees estate
in Winstanley, known as 'Dukes', was still operat - Becondly,
Richerd Hollinshead, who resumed the name of Elundell by royal licence
in 1836 and added it to Blundell Hollinshesd, sank seversl new pits.
Between 1839 and 1842 he senk Amberswood Colliery in the Walmesley
estate on the Ince-Hindley buunﬂlr{, the Mesnes Colliery to work
the famous Cannel mine under the Glebe lend in Wigan in the Mesnes
Fark, - Harket Square, — Bull Hey, - Frog lane area, the Tanhouse
Colliery under the Bridgewster Trustees estate st Tanpits, Pemberton,
and tThe Venture pits near Summersales, Femberton.

Amberswood worked the Ince end Pemberbton seams, Tanhouse and
Venture pits, the Orrell four and five feet seams. Richard also ook
over the Chorley Colliery frem Messrs. John Whittle and Partmers; this
worked the Mountain seam under Chorley town centre. But Blackrod
Colliery was %uing through difficult times. An explosion there in
1856 killed 1l men, and & still more dimsstrous one in 1849 caused
great destruction im the mine. Blundell decided to close it.

The venture and cther pits sunk in the 1840's were twelve feeth
in diameter snd for the mest part lined with brickwork. The Low
Venture was linedy = |or partly lined with special bricks curved to
the diameter of The shaft. The shafts at Amberswood, sunk through
severel beds of rock, were onl Egurtinlly lined. A report by Grimshaw,
& mining engineer, dated May 15 s states that:

"In Ho. 9 shaft the rock was so broken and dislocated that it
wes positively dengerous in passing through: in fact during one
descent, the underlooker had to signal to the enginmen to stop while .
we moved pieces of dislocated rock before we could continue down."

During the famine winter of 1800 seriocus riotings again
oceurred in the Wigan district, and there were many disturbances
during the fellowing 20 years, notably in 1812 and 418719, In 1812,
the situation was 30 serious %hat 2 meeti of the lieutenancy
was held in W - The Earl of Derby, the lord liewtenant, presided,
and 56 deputy lieubtenants were pregent, including the following who
bad inferests im the coal industry: Sir William Gerrerd, Meyrick
Bankes, Sir T.D. Hesketh, Sir Richard Clayton, Nichelas Ashton,
Isaac Blackburn, George Cese, John Clarke, T.B. Standish, R. Willis;
4. walmesley, William Hulten, Michael Hulton snd R.G. Hopwood. A
statement affer the meeting said they viewed,

“with horror and extreme sorrow the riots, tumults and breaches
of the peace that have occurred in this country which disgrace
civilised society and are most dangercus to the Commenwealth or
public polity of the Kingdom. Any of Hi= Majesty's subjects may arm
themselves and of course may use the ordinsry mesns of force to
suppress riots and disturbances.™ '

They advised the forming
of regular associations for mutual defence.
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There was great distress at thisz time, and it was said that the
common necessities of life had become luxuries to working people.
The maximum earnings of a collier employed at Orrell Collieries in
1817 were from 62 1d to 6s 64 per day, out of which the colliers had
to pay their drawers. Day wages varied from 104 to 1s 24 for boys
sod 2s Od to 28 24 for men. The score price for 24 baskets of 1501b
was 28 11d which iz the approximate equivalent of 1s 104 per ton.

A wage-book from Pemberton Collieries, covering the years
18256 and 1827, hes survived, in which the rates of pay guocted for
day-wage men differ only very slightly from those operating at the
Orrell Cellieries a decade earlier. Men's wages varied between 1s 64
and 2= 104 per day and boys betweem 84 and 1s 44 per Ea%'. In 1830,
however, ss much as 3s 84 was peid for a day-wage, and 25 64 per day
was guite commen.

The Combinationslaws, passed in 1800, had been repealed in
1824, but dubing the 25 years of their existence, the colliers had
used the many friendly sociefies as a cloak for trade union activities.
At least 10 of these societies were operating in Wigan before 1800,
and duriggtthn period of the Combination Laws, 11 new ones were
formed. Union Bociety was formed at Orrell on 2nd May 1808 and
the Hrotherly Union Society, which finctioned at the Ben Jonson
Imn in Pemberton from Oct T%?#, was active during the whole period
of the Combination Laws.

By 1850, a Cellier's Union had been formed at Wigan, and,
indicative of the:swiolence of the times, is the conviction of six
colliers who broke into the house of a fellow collier, smashed his
furniture and raped his wife and deughter because he refused to
attend 2 unicn meeting. These vicious and vioclent sssaults by union
zealots upon those of their fellows who did share their own enthusiasm,
and especially leter om ‘bla ' were known as 'ravin', amd
although 'revining' was condemned by the unions, it was an all too
common cccurrence. The first action of This new Colliers Union was
a strike in 1831 in the Wigan efga,after which a gantral increase
in weges was given to the miners. During the 1830's food prices
continually rese, but wages were glow to follow, and consequently
there was again great distress in Wigen. A Naticnal Heliday and
strike was proclaimed by the Chartists in 1839, but at that time
thare were only about 150 Chartists in Wigan, less than a dozen of
whom, it was said, would resort to vielence. By 1842, however, the
situstion had changed completely and on 12th August of that year,

a mob of 10,000 Chertists from surrounding areas descended on Wigsan,
forced their way info all the collieries and cotton mills, stopped
the engines, and turned 3,000 people out of werk. It is beyond doubt
that Blundell's important collieries, especially their Mesnes Pits
in the centre of town, were among those affected. On the following
day, asome 3,000 Wiganers asgembled, and after parasding around the
town with banmers flying, marched off up Wigan Iane, where they were
%inp&r:eﬂ by a detachment of the 72nd Highlanders stationed in the
OWIla

About this time, efforts were being mede to form a Natiomal
Miners Union, and et a meeting called for thaet purpose in Lfril 1843
at Newcastle on Tyne, a representstive from a "Pemberton Co liery"
was present. If this Pemberton Colliery wes Blundells' and not
Pemberton Main Colliery af Sunderlsnd, it was the only Iancashire
colliery represented, and it is highly probsble that the delegate
was John Berry, who, borm at Standish in 1806, had been minent in
four previous unijions. Burin§ the latter part of August 1853, placards
were posted in Wigen and it's emvirons headed, "Slaves, stop and read”




They announced & meeting, to be held on Amberswood Common on

27th K %, to be addressed, among others, by David Swallow of
Wakefield, one of the founders and the first secretary of the new
Miner's Association of Grest Britain and Ireland. Henry Denmnett
presided, Daniel Thompson of Newcastle on Tyne propesed the resolution
that weges peid to the minerg in the Wigen district were insufficient
to mointain themselves and their families and that it was the opinionm
of the miners present That the only remedy was cordially to unifte
with their brethren of England, Scotlend and Wales. During the after-
noon, the delegates held a meeting at the Croffer's Arms in Wigan,
there they appointed Berry and Thompsen to attend a conference of
delegates to be held at Newcastle on Tyme.

There were strikes in Wigan during the folleowing months, and
gome colliers were prosecuted for mot giving nmotice and thnriﬂr
commitfimg & bresch of contract to which they hed legally bound
themselves. There was great distress everywhere i the district, and
further meetings proclaimed that,

"nothing short of strict union can have the effect of extricating
the miners from their fallen cenditiom".

Wages were abysmally low, and two quoted cases of miner's earn—
ings, after paying their drawers smnd paying for candles, tools,
jck sharpening etc: were 7s 44 and 10z 54 per week. The score price
En the King seam at most of the Wigan pits working it had been

reduced during repeated depressioms Ifrom 24s Od to 158 Od.

The new HNational Union rapidly gained in strengbh and funds.
It paid £1,000 a year to William Prowbing Roberts, s very sble
lawyer to fight it's cases. He was probebly responsible for the -
printed addresses from the colliers employed at the lexgest cdllieries
in Wigen, which appesred before the public during the last weeks of
Hovember 1845.

The largest meeting of célliers that had been held in The
district up to that time Hook place on Aspull Moor on ZO0th Uctober
1844 %o hear an address from Mr. EHoberts, the 'mimer's attormey
general.' The colliers from Pemberton and Orrell joined their Wigan
brethren and formed &n impreasive procession. THenext big meeting
vwas atulsmberhesd Green Pemberton. George Ramsden, a Burnley minex,
occupied the chair, snd over 2,000 persons were present. lMr. Roberis,
who geve the mein address, advocated pesce, law and order, and said
that if work was available for 950 men and 1,000 applied for work,
it was better that 950 should work amnd support the other 50 in
idleness rather than that 1,000 should work and thus reduce the
wages of all. leocal celllers spoke in suppert, stressing the need
for every miner to join the union and c¢laiming that the uniom could
bring men grest benefita. About this time, the colliers, on the
advice and directicn of their 'AtTormey General', brought a number
of legal cases sgainst the owners. In ome ¢f them, Eoberts represented
8 ¢o er, who wanted to be released from his contract because he
alleged that the manager of his company, Harrison and Turner of
Clapgate Colliexy Pemberton, wes incompetent. The megistrates who
heard the case were William Gerrard Walmegley, a royalty owner, and
John Woodecock and James Acten, both coal owners. Not unnaturally,
they found for the defendant, and, we may assume, they were unanimous
in their verdiet.

From now on, Blundell's collieries expanded to become one
of the three largest, most important and most famous of the many
coal mining copcerne in the Wigan area, the other two be the
Wigan Coal & Iron Co., of which more willbe said later, the
Pearson and Enowles Coal and Tron Co.




TEE WIGAN COALFTELD TN 1851

The next part of the project diascusses the W Coalfield
in 1851. It containe informaticn concerning the producticn, manpowar,
and size of individusl pifs and alszo of fhe area in rai. Host of

the information is taken from &n article by A.J. Taylor M.A., who
gtudied an old manuscript notebook with the cover title, List of
Collieries eround Haigh “1851.

The notebock was found amomg Tthe nineteenth century accounts
of the Haigh collierieg and in it are notes of 103 ecollieries with
details of leocation, cwner, seams worked, colliers employed and
daily ocutput. For the histerian of the ILancashire coal indusliry,
this list supplements the printed 1ista of J.5L, Eenne in the
'Report of the Childrers Employment Commission'(1841-2) snd of
J. Dickinson in the 'Return of the Mines Inspector' (from 1854).
Kennedy's list, though 1 hy, is selective, naming only those
¢ollieries which he himgelf had visited and furnishing details of
employment for less than half of these: Dickinson's lis%t, o¢n the
other hand, though professedly comprebensive in it's coverage of
the lLenceshire coalfield, &nd probebly coming close o FThis idesl,
provides no detailed figures either of employment or of output.
The Haigh list, however, though patently inaccurstie in detail and
restricted in scope %o the Wigpan ares, is much the fullest of the
three in it's imeidental information. Taken together the lists -
provide materisl for the construction of a clear picture of the
structural framework of the West Iancashire coal gﬂﬂusﬁry of the
nineteenth century.

¥What was the purpose of the Haigh List? Much hinges upon this
guestion, for an estimate of the scecuracy and cempleteness of its
information depends ely upon sn answer %o it. Unfortunately,
the manuscript itself gives 1ittle or no clue to the reasen for its
existence. Certain possibilities pressat themselves: that this wes a
list compiled for the purposes of & trade association - such an
asgociation existed in the south-west lancashire coal industry at
this time; that it was intended to put on record Haigh's competitors
in the local Wigan market; or that it wes merely a mine-agent's
exercise. Of these possible explanations the first seems The lesst
plausible, if only because of the demonstrable omissions and errors
of the list. A less official and less formal 'raison d'etre’ seems
therefore probable.

The area covered by the Heigh survey extends to Billinge and
Bhevingbton in the west and te parts of Chorley in the morth; it
touches Westhoughton and Teigh in the esst and Ashton in the south;
it reaches as far as -~ but not beyond — Haydock and FPerr in The south-
west. Within this section of the Lancashire cocalfield, sccording
o the compiler of the List, one hindred operating nniliarit: were
producing upwards of 5,500,000 tone of coal a year. These figures

be compared with Dickinson's official return for the entire
coalfield im 185% of 363 collieries producing 9,860,060 tons. The
aversge annual output for each colliery, some 70,000 tons, was
appreciably bigher than that of the mejority of inland coalfields,
but below that of the "seasale™ collieries of South Wales, Cumberland,
and, sbove gll, Northumberlsnd and Durham.

Tt is in deteiled mfialysis, however, that the Haigh returns
are most revealing. Although the mejority of collieries were small-
fifty—eight per cent of them were esch yielding less than 100 tons a
day- the greater part of the district's output was accounted for at
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this time, as later, by a hsndful of large collieries. Six collieries,
each producing upwards of 450 tons & day, provided more than a
guarter of the distict's output; nine, with a daily output of over
500 Tons, more than & third. When attention is turned from collieries
to firms, the dispsrity between the productive gignificance of the
larger and smaller collieries is even more marked; for though at

thiz time few individuals or firms owned more tham a single colliery,
such concentration of ownership as had occurred had affected the j
larger rather than the smaller collieries.

The "typical™ colliery of the district, however, was that
raising from 100 to 300 toms = day. Almost a third—thirty-one— of
the collieries fell imte this cetegory, and of these twenty-two, or
almost & quarter, were raising bebtween 100 and 200 tons; in all,
thé = thirty-one collieries were responsible for forty per cent
of the districte output, For omce the 'average' colliery was the
'typical' colliery. The mesn average output per ceolliery was 134 tons
and no fewer Than fourteen collieries came within thirty tens of
this figure.

The aversge dsily cutput of each man may be computed gs four
tons. This is an extremely high figure, and it must therefore be
asgumed that the compiler counted as colliers only hewers employed
at the face. Such a daily ouwtput for each hewer iz similar to that
celculated for the whole of lLancashire by Dickinson: and, following -
Dickinson, one may therefore sssume that each recorded collier
represented approximetely three sdditional offhand workers. The total
labour force for the cme hundred collieries would thus be about
13,000, and outpuf per head about one ton per day.

To this point discussion has been of cellieries rather than

of pits,of business rather than techmical units. 8¢ far as it is
possible to make calculations on the basis of the Haigh List, there
were 201 pits in operation imn the 100 collieries ¢f the Uigan
distriel in 1851. The number of colliers employed in individual
pite was small by compsrison with later standarde, or by comparison
with the great collieries of Northumberlsnd and Durham. Though the
Ho. 1 pit at Messrs. Bromilows' Parr colliery was estimated o employ
100 feceworkers, with a daily output of 800 tons from the Rushy Park
sean, such & pit was quite excepticnal. It may be compared with
lNesgrs. Eccles and Stocks' colliery at Ashton which was also producing
in the regien of 800 tons a day, bub doing s¢ with the labour of 134
colliers dispersed among ten distinct pits end fifteen different
workings. Messrs. Evens at Haydock likewise had eight workinge pits
employing 11€ face workers to produce €75 tons of coal. Deeper :
winnings mesnt grester concentrstion of workers in the individual
pit, and in those districts, particularly towards the boundaries of
the coalfield, where the search for procuctive seams hed demsnded
deepening shafts, the total nmumbersof workers in each pit might be
Eiih; but, even in the cese of the collieries of large output, the

1ly production of a hundred toms of coel snd the employment of a
hundred persoms in tetal in = single pit was still in 1851 the
exception rather than the rule.

The List as its compiler left it has one importent omissiom,
Eaigh itself. Haighy though not the largest of the West Lancashive
collieries, was a concern of the first ramk. Tn the three years,
1846-9, 554,531 Ltons were produced by the Haigh pits, an average of
some 750 o 800 tons a day. In March 1849 this guantity was being
raised from eighteen pits, less than fifty toms a day from each pit.

The Eiﬂtﬂri that emerges, therefore, i= of a coaplfield in
which the larger collieries were in the mscendent but had as yet
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net risen Yo a position of dominance. Alresdy Lord Crawford, Jonathan

Blundell, Devid Bromilow, John Case, John Darlington, Richard Evans
and Ackers and Company were nemes of importance the local coal
trade: little less significant were the concerns of Ralph Thiclknesse,
Jobn Iancester snd Meyrick Bankes, all destined tec make their merk
in the industry in the next hali-cemtury. But the day of the small
coal-owner wWas by no means yet past; and the shallew pit of 580 feet
or less was still the predominant technical unit on the coalfield.,

The list of eollieries which follows is in its essentials a
trangcript of the Helgh manuscript List, but it differs from it in
the following respects: in omitting all detzils of ?it! and merely
Pf&:&ﬂtlﬂﬁ iigurus of totédl msnpower (i.e. colliers) and output for
each colliery; in formelizing the presgentation of the material; and
in correcting the figures where errors of sddition are clanrly
Eﬁrﬂeptihla Additiens and corrections %o the menuscript sre indieated

¥ square brackets. Doubtful words and figuree— the calligraphy is
generally pooer — are gueried; those morée femilisr with the ares will
perhaps find mere sppropriste renderings in these instances than
A.J. Teylor heg been nbfa o make.

THE HATGH LIST
Principal colliery owmers, with outputs of more tham 120,000 tons
per year or over in 18%51.

Golliers Deily Oubput |
BROMILOW S i qmﬂ J‘.
EVANS 176 875 '
ECCLES & BTOCES 134 asz
BELUNDELL & SON 165 802
DARLINGTOH 470 8OO
EART, CRAWFORD 7 200-800
ACEERS & Co. 115 690
IEIGH & Co. 135 S47
CASE 153 76 |
mmlmr COLLIERTES TN 1851 & 5 :
14 Place QHME : Dapg - -‘ e . I %1
CHORLEY ,  BIUNDEIZ, MILISTOKE 2 2 32 100 Mounbain
L HARGREAVES = 1 1 M2 50 Avley
w e T 3

- S9! 5§§¥TLE . 2 2% &7 Arley
WIGAN CASE PovaIas 3 2 28 56 Wigan 7/-

el fF -

éggghg%ﬁﬁ - 2 g 1002 300 Camnnel, Eing
" CHARNOCK & - ¥ 3 77 335 TNMowntain
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9 i §
10 L
11 =
32 [ 1
13 "
14 L
15 =
16 INCE
17 WIGAN
18 THCE
19 "
E-G_ "
51 H
22 "
2% .
24 i §
25 HLAGERCD
26 IEIGE

28 WESTHOUGHTON
29 w

30 »

21 »

32 . "

33 WIGHEN
34 HINDLEY
35 L

36 ORRELL

THOMAS ; — A
MRS, & 1
FOURACRE

ACTON L 1

HY. WOOD HOIME EOUSE 4
J.BLUNDELL MESHES COLL.2
JH. PARE SPRING MILL 1

JN. WOODS FACTORY PIT 1

JN. TAMB WALTACE 2
LANE PIT

WRIGHT & - 2

PAYIOR

ECCLES WATER SEYE 1
PIT

CASE DOUGLAS &
BANE

R.FRESTON = 1

WARIEY & GO - 2

MOSS HALL FMOSS HALL &
& CO. . '

HUDTALL & - X
CATDWELL

CASE ROSE BRIDGE 2
NUTTALL  IOW GROUND 1
HALTEURTON HIGH o

BOLLINS
DEEP FIT

GORE & CO MRIEY

1
PARRINGTON SPRINGFIELD 2
& CO. :

JN . JOERBON - 1
SCOWCROFT W'BOUGHTON 2
TRUSTEES OF ALBERT 1

- JP CRAIG
HeULMoN WHITEHOESES 1
WOOTMARD = 2
NUTTATT, dr 1
IEIGHE & CO CHASM PIT. 3

JN . ELEAS- .
CASELE HTIL 2

BLONDELL  AMBROSE= 2
WooD
WITHY 3
BOUSE

BANEES
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12
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50
160
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165

20
174

135

Mountain
Pemberton
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Wigan /= 5/n
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9rt.

Wigan 7/-
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Fﬂi
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Yard
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51t.
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Cannel,iing A<t.




37 PEMBERTON
38 o

39 WIGAN

52° BLAGKROD

HUGH EROWN DELF PIT 1

DAGLTSH

MAY HULL
& CO.

PRESICN &
S0

& 0O
WETTE
J.MARBH

HY .HARRISON GILAP-
GATE

GHIMSHAW
3. BAKER

54 BIACKROD BROW DUTTON &
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67 RAINFORD
68 HINDLEI
Ela i

70 AERAHM
41 STANDIGH

?E m
‘?‘5 "

s £
75 PEMEERTON

76 WINSTANLEY
77 ABHTON

76 HATDOCK

79 FARR

80 IHCE

81 SEEVINGTCN

82
55 m
(=2
85

86 STANDISH
Bt

538

92 WINBTANLEY
9% BILLINGE

96 ]

5Ty

97 COPPULL

HARDING -
MACEAY & Co. -
TANCASTER =
& Co.
ACEERS & Co.BICEERSHAW
COLLIERY
T_GASEFLL BIE LANE
COLL.
TATIOR TUNFEL COL.
HOLT (STOTTIWIGAN
CEURCH
J.STEVENS LAMEERHEAD
GREEN
BELUNDELL & BIB,HIGHER
SONS VENT MILL
BANEES -
STOCK -
EVANS -
BEOMIOW BROMIOW
THICKENESSE ~
BARTON & 2
WINDEN
STOPFORD (TH) -
DICKENSON -
TAYLOR =
BARTON & =
WINDEN
BRADLET COL. BRADLEY
BMITH & -
CHARNOCE
J »DARLINGTON 3
MORT & EEABP &
BEDFORD COAL -
C0.
BYROM & &
TATIOR
WINDERS -
M. JONES SHALEY
. BROW
BERANEER & BILLINGE
co
DARLINGTON  ASTLEY
AILETANDER  ~ HOLLAND
MOOR
DARLINGTON  COFPULL

H o= By W M 00 RO A

b

B A

2 10 50
1 4 20
2 32 155
& 15 690
1 10 50
5 31 168
i 2 10 Lz
p 6 36
I 51 408
3 i A & % -
2 11 &0
9 1lle &75
2 140 1000
2 b =206
3 I8 175
2 B &0
i 8 28
1 25 &8
1 10 40
2 24 &0
2 55 214
3 A L. -
1 10 50
2 86 230
2 22 208
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2 14 36
2 100 200
3 985 “4&5
1 7 28
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STOCES
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The Wigan Coalfield up to the formation of the Wigan Cosl &
Iron Companmy Itd.

The Wigan Coalfield from aboubt 1851 onwards continued to
expand. The colliery units became larger, production incressed and
alsc the numbers employed in the pits. A sign of the inereased
expansion cameé with the ever increasing shaft depths being attained.
In fact, during the second half of the nineteenth century, the
Iancashire pits took the lead in progressive shaft deepening with
Astley deep pit at Dukinfield reaching 350 fathoms in 1858, Rosebridge,
Wigan,408 fathoms, 1869 and Ashton Mess Colliery, Audenshaw,
Manchester on 5th Merch 1881 to 448 fathoms.

By now, coal had become the majfor industry of Wigen and
district and the area had become the prinmecipsl mining cemtre in
Lenceshire, primarily because it hed the largest number of coal
outerops for each square mile in the whole county.

In 1865 there were some forty-eight celliery companies
operating in the Wigan district and according to the list given
below, were produc nearly 4,000,000 tons per annum. This was the
beginning of the pericd of peak production of coal from the Wigan

ares.
LIST OF COLLIERIES IN THE WIGAN AREA IN 1863
, Name of Celliery Co. ' Qwners ;Tong raised
7 Chorley Colliery James Darlington 50,000
2 Red Bank Colliexy Whaley 10,000
% Welch Whittle James Darlington 55,000
4 Charter Lane Whittle & Coy 10, 000
5 Coppull Exors of J. Hargreaves 20,000
6 Btandish John Taylor & Son 100,000
7 Broomfield Btome & Moor 20,000
g Eradley Fisher 25,000
9 Standish & Shevi on Steandish & Bhevington Coal &
Coal & Cannel Wor Cannel Compeny &0, 000
10 Grook 10,000
11 Kirkless Hall Kirkless Hall Coal & Tron 500, 000
12 Haigh Esrl of Crawford and
BalcarTes 400 , 000
13 Chapel Field Rescoe & Lord 15,000
14 Dooteon & Veuze Hall Leather 18,000
15 Blackrod Thomas Whaley 30,000
16 Vicberia Mein Ridgway . 40,000
17 Seoct Lene Hy. Woods 35,000
18 Erinsop Longworth 12,000
19 Albert Gerrard 10,000
20 Walthew House Brancker 75,000




21 Holland
22 Norley

2% Pembarton
24 Meadows House
25 Gidlow lape & Bapk Hill

26 Bprings, HEindley and
Barley B.

27 Bwinley

28 Ince Hall Coal &
Cannel Works

29 Mesnes

%0 Bank Hill

%1 014 Hey

A Round House

33 Birkett Bank

%4 Roge Bridge

Z5 Osier House & Hindley
36 Pembsrton Calliery
27 Wingtanley

%8 BStone House

39 Worsley Mesnes

40 Ince Hall

41 Moss Hall

42 Low Hall

4% BStrangeways

44 Platt Bridge

A5 Bryn Moss

46 Hindley Green

47 Park Colliexry %
Broadfield

48 Snapes

Earl of Crawford and
Ealcarres

Horley Coal and Cannél
Company
Tamb & Moore

Anthony Eccles
William Earton
FPeareon & Enowles

Rylands & Cross

Ince Hall Coal & Canmel
Company

Teylor & Turner

Bank Hill Cesal Company
d. & I. Flatt

Wright & Mercer
Shawcross & Crompben
Casze & Morris

Thomas Gidlow

Heggre. A. Blundell & Sons
Meyriek Banks

John Stephen
Hathaniel Eckersley
Robert James & Co.
Moss Hall Coal Co.
Tates

Strangeways Hall Co.
Platt Bridge Coal Co.
MHessrs. Whittle
Hindley Green Coal Co.
Speakman

John Gregory

124, GO
120,000

70,000
15,000
1@,506
ﬂﬁ,ﬂﬂﬂ

350,000

35,000

450,000
20,000
12,000

5,000
40,000
25,000

00,000
60,000

500,000
30,000
20,000
10,000
20,000

150,000
10,000

100,000
12,000
20,000
55,000
60,000

22,500

Totel Tonnage 35,851,500

Gome of Fhe comp&nina listed amelgemated To form the HTwo
mein mining operators in the district in the twentieth century,
the Pesrson snd Enowles Coel & Ironm Compeny and The Wigan Coal &

Tron Company.

It was againgt this background of expansion and amelgamstion
that the formation and the subsequent working of the Wigan Coal &
Iron Co. was brought esbout. This development, discussed in The next
gection, was possibly the most impertant locsl mining event of the

nineteenth cemtury.




THE WIGAN COAL AKD TRON COMPANY

The Wigan Coal and Iren Co. was registered under the Companies
Act of 1862, on December Znd 1865 to w copl, irenm, limestone
and other mines and comprised the amalgametion of several existing
collieries and iromworks: Haigh and Upholland collieries, Eirkless
Hall Coal end Iron Works, ish and Shevingtom Cannel Works,
Eroomfield Colliery and Wegber Quarry.

411 brenches of the fompany were conveniently situated mear
to one of the main railway lines (Lancashire & Yorkshire or ILondon &
Horth Western) so that their products were eagily transported to
their major agencies in Preston, Blackburn, B%J.;arpml, Manches-
ter and Wolverhsmpton. However, in the case of s the product
Was nalgﬁdirﬂct to that market rether tham shipped to an agent who
then =zo t.

Prior to amalgamation, Haigh snd Upholland Collieries and
Wegher Quarry were owned by the Earl of Crawford and Belcarres
whose sncestors hed mined coal in the Haigh area of Wigen since the
sixteenth century. Kirkless Hall Coal & Iron Works were owned as a
¢o-partnership between the following Coal & Iron masters:

John Lencaster of Hindley Hall near Wigan.

John Swire of Llanelly

Jephtah Pacey of Higher Broughton near Menchester
Samuel Swire of Bouthport

James Reynolds of Bayswater Middlesex

In addition, Lencaster, in conjunction with John Taylor of
Londen and Thomss Pert, Chorley, was cne of the lessees of the Standish
and Shevington Camnel Works. Fimally Broomfield Colliery had been
lessed by Alfred Hewlett, a native of Wigan.

Upon the incorpersation in December 1865, Hewlett became
managing director of the company with Lancaster as Chairman. Although
ne trace can be found of the remaining directors of the compeny et
the initiation of the cnggany, it cen be fairly safely said from the
evidence of a later record that they were the 1 of Crawford &
Balcarres and Thomas Fart.

The Wigan Coal & Iron Co, wes formed during the early phase of
company promotion after the passing of a series of acts permitting
Joint Stock Compasnies the protection of Limited Lisbility. Indeed
late 1865 gaw an npﬁurﬁzﬂng genersal cempany promotion, coinciding
with a boom resulting m the end of the American Civil War. The
Companie's nominal capitel wes £2,193,100, of which £1,809,725% wag
pald up; 21,937 shares were issued at a nominal value of £100 each.
However only 6,596 were taken at the @11 amount end the remaining
15,535 were paid up at £75 each.

Wigan Coal snd Iron Co. Shareholders 11865

EARL OF CRAWFORD & BALCAREES — 8577
JOUHN LANCASTER - 516z
JOEN SWIRE - 1190
JEPHTAHE PACEY o 1454
SAMUEL SWIRE , 2 1454
JAMES REYNOLDS - 1454
THOMAS PART = 1196
JOHN TAYIOR - 1196

248

ALFRED ERNLEDT =




Shown above are the nmihber of shares teken by the founders of
the €o from which can be szeen the predominance of Crawford and
Lancaster the Compsnie's shareholding, totalling approximstely
e0%. The paid up cepitel remained at the aforementioned T
up to at least 1885. Though a private limited company, its capital
size was much greabter than the average figure for public companies.

In 1885, for coal, iron and steel companies, the average paid
up capital per company wes £362,000 and for compeanies classified by
the Btock prge as "commercial end industriai® this figure wes
£129,000, For all companies, irrespective of the type of ownership,
the average capital per company in the seme year wss £59,000. Only
two companies of comparable type to the Wigan Coal & TIron Co. had,
at this time, & r nominal capital; that of Bolckow amd Veughn
was £2.5million, that of Ebbw Vale Coal & Iren Co. was £2.2milliom.
Indeed at This time, the Wigan Coal & Iron Co. must have ranked as
one of the nation's largeat firms. Tn 1905 it was 42nd largest but
most of those firms that preceded it had been formed affer 1865,
either independently or as & result of amalgemstion.

Thues on the whole, the Company was extremely typical of limited
companies then being formed in the coal and ircon industries with
regard to the character and denomination of its shares. These new
companies were mainly conversions of private mines, furnaces and
ironworks, and the shareholders were chiefly the griginal owners,
local men of some standing, 8nd a few town investors.

The capitel and shareholdings were large, but the number of
investors was %en:rally small; e.g. in 1868, Ebbw Vale Coal & Iron
Co. had a capital of £2.2million, with 596 shereholders and in the
same year, Bargoed Coal Compenie’s capital was £20,000 and the
nunber of shareholders was 16.

Having briefly oublined the formation of the Comp ; DNamed
the leading participants in the amalgametion snd looked at the
financial organization, it could be worthwhile to look at the
personalities who dominsted the Company and its subsegquent opersbtions.

The Chairman, John Lancaster, a native of Radcliffe, spent all
his working life in the coal and iron trade. In 1845, af the age
of thirty, he started Kirkless Hall Collieries end combined the
ownership of these mines with the mensgement of otiers such as Earl
Granville's ironworks and cellieries in North Staffordshire. Between
1856 and 1860 he agsembled five blast furneces &t Kirkiessy which
were the first iron smelting furnsces in Lanceshire. A member of
the Liberal party, he became ome of Wigan's two M.P.s between 1868
and 1874. In the House he took & prominent part in the suppert of
the Mines Regulation Act of 1872, and for his woerk there on behalf
of the working class he earned the praise of William Pickard, a
mining Trede Unionist and fellow Liberal candidate in an electiom
speech of 1874,

In contrest to Lancaster the meansger of the company, Alfred
Hewlett, was a keen member of the local Comserveative Association.
Though both men during their careers became President of the Mining
Aggociation of Greet Britaim, their views on certain aspects of
nining differed. For example, while Tancaster supported the Mines
Regulations Aet of 1872, Hewlett was an srch-enemy of any such
restriction on the power of the colliery owners. Despite these
differences, the careers of the two men exhibited some similarities.
Both had been mining engineers and had worked their way to an :
elevated position in their profession. Hewlett, the son of a clergyman,
spent all his busiméss life largely in connectiem with the Wigan




digtrict, and wes a respected member of the mining trade. As well

ag holding the presidency of the Mining Associstion of Great Britein
from 1873 te 1875, he was president of the Lanceshire snd Cheshire
Coal Owners Associafion from 186E-3. As = lesding figure in the coal
trade he was celled upon to give evidence before the Select Commitbee
on Mines of 1866 and the Balect Committee on Coal of 1873 as well

ag before the Hoyel Commission on Depression and Trade and Industry
in 1886 snd the Royal Commission on Mineral Royalties in 1890.

Upon Hewlett's relirement sf chairmen of the Wigan Conservative
Association, the chairman of the presentation meeting remarked that
there was no o¢ne His Lordship (the Barl of Crawford and Balcarres)
looked upon and considered a truer friemd than Mr. Hewlett. It was
this friendship that formed cne side of the struggle for control of
the company during the first five years after its formation.

During the period 1865 to 1885 the title of the Esrl of Crawford
and Balcarres changed hands twice. The first occasion was in 1860
when the 24th ear] James Crawford died and was succeeded by his @
eldest son Alexauder William Crawford whe held the title until 1880,
when, upon his death, agsin the eldest son, James Indovie Crawford
({Iindsay ?) became ?6th earl.

The 24%th earl belonge@d to that category of landed gemtry,
described by David Spr as "more unconvential and adventurous,”
who were not content to lease out their mineral rights, but who
mined a good part of their own coal. However, after his death in
1869 it may fairly safely be sgaid that throughout the rest of the
pericd, his successors took relstively little active pert in the

of the firm snd were content to leave their interests in the
hends of the other directers, especially those of Alfred Hewlett.

By 1870 control of the company had devolved into the hands of
Alfred Hewlett ss a result of fundamental dissgreement between the
directors about tThe rumning of the day to day affairs of the firm.
After a disagreement over varioms policy decisions at a meeting, a
vote was Taken on the issues and the voling was egual and so the
motion was net carried ag Lancaster and Part were for the motion amd
Crawford and Hewlett against. Lancaster called an Extraordinary
General Hent:gﬁ &t which they were defeated and so Lancazter resigned
as chairman dizposed of his interest in the company,

After loo at the formation of the company, its lesding
personalities and the determination of leadership, its subseguent
performance can now be discussed. Bubt first a brief description of
the company and its constituwentiparts must be mede. Its products
were limited o coaloef various types and pig iron. Tts most famous
coal was "W Cannell”, the most valuable smd highest priced of
its coals which hes been described as "the noblest fuel in the world”.
The sgignificent feature asbout the ironworks was that little diversif=
jcation of its product wes attamgtnd, though "spiegeleisen”™, an
iron slloy used to reduce the sulphur in steel, was introduced
towards the end of the 1880's. However, no large scale innovation,
such as the manufacture of steel was attempted.

The company was of course situated primarily in the Hifnn
Digtrict and significantly this ares hes been described as "the
coubxry of the Wigean Coal & Iron Co."™, a tribute to its size. Land
was leased by the co in Wigen itself and in the neighbouring
townships of igh, Upholland, Shevington, Aspull, Standish and
Orrell and ocutside the immediste vieinity of Wigsn, in Westhoughton
and Westleigh. |

Though occupying 2 miner role in the compeny's operations,




the iron works at Kirkless Hall has nevertheless an interesting
history. The connection of the Balcarres family with the trade
goes back To the eighteenth century. An ironworks, owned by the
Eerl of Balcarres from 11788, had been in operation on his Ha
property during the eighteenth century and into the nineteent
century. Balcarres so0ld out in 1830. Despite this comnection, the
company's ironworks did not originate from this source. They were
established et Kirkless Hall by & pertnership hesded by John
Iencaster. Between 1856 and 1860 [ive blast furneces were constructed
The Haigh ironworks hed used local cosl meagure irconstone, but the
Kirkless Hall plant did not depend on this source. From the very
beginning, haematite ore from the Furness area was gmelted with coke
from the Kirkless Hall collieries to produce pig iron. Upon incorpor-
ation in 1865, it was the only smelting works in Somth Lancashire
and second, in the number of furnaces, inh the whole county.

Figures on the numbers employed by the company sre difficult
to find, especially with regard to & breakdown between those employed
in the coal mines and those in the iremworks respectively. However,
total employment in 1866 was 7,000 and in 1877 wes 10,000 which
figure remained approximetely the sgame until 1885. From the coal and
iren sales' figures which sre only available from 1870 to 1874, it
can be seen thal the preportiom by welue of irem in the total sales
of the firm varies from between ¥ to #. Therefore, il the value of
someone employed in coal is the same &s that of somecne amplgﬂ;d in
iron, from this it would appear that coal mining occupied 7,

ersons and the Iromworks 3,000. Comparizon with the total employed

coal mining in the Wigen Ares is possible: for example, in 13;:}

there were 18,000 in the whole area, the Wigen Coal & Trom Co. thus
employed approximately 40%.

WIGAN COATL & JRON CO. COAL AND IRON SALES 1E870-74

Half-year ending ; December 3T 1870  oug1 sales £3355,015
Tron sales £177,554

Half-year ending June 30 1871 Coal sales 331,549
Iron sales £190,754

Half-year ending Decenber 31 1871 Coal saleg £364,138
y Iron sales £188,598

Half-year ending June 30 1872 Coal sales £407,699

Iron sales E207,820

Coal sales £509,721
Iron ssles £211,231

Half-yesr ending June 30 1873 Coal sales £574,197
Iron sales £260,58%

Half-year ending Decembexr 31 1872

Helf-year ending December 31 1875 * coa1 sales £624.399
Tron sales £245,6%6
Half-year ending December %1 1874 Coal sales £373,082
Iren sales £169,080

Cutput £ s are & littj;e better, especially with regard to

epal in the earlier pericd.” Tm the following table, a full list of
the output of the individual eollieries, prier to the amalgamation,
can be found. Their combined output was 1.1 million tonms =%t a time
when the total cutput for the area was 5.8 million tons.




OUTFUT OF WIGAN COAL & TROK CO's CONBTITUENT COLLIERIES IN 1863

BROCIIIELD COLLIERY COMPANY "= 20,000 tons
BTANDISE AND SHEVINGTON COAL & CANNEL WORES - 60,000 tons
KIRELESS HALL COLLIERY COMPANY - 500,000 tons
HOLTAND COLLIERY COMPANY = 120,000 tons
HATGH COLLIERY COMPANT = 400,000 tons

The Kirkless Hall Colliery was the biggest producer in the
Wigen ares, with the Haigh Celliery the third largest. By 1873,
the compsny's output was just under two million tons and was still
st thet figure in 1BBS5.

Comparison with the Wigan arees can be seen in 1875, for example,
when the total sres output was 5.5 million tons. Figuzet for iron
oufput are very poor, the only available one being for 1885, when
with only half the furnmeces working, 100,000 tons was produced,
an average of 20,000 tons per furnace, a slightly larger f
than the British ave - In 1880, the save Eritish output was
15,000 tons per blast ce and by 1890 had risen %o 19,000 tons.

The most impertani market for the company's coal was provided
by domestic users. In ‘1875 it wee estimated that tThese abszorbed
between 40 and S50% of the firm's oubput. Gasworks were another
important customer, perticularly for cannel coal which was exclusively
used for ges purpeses. The compeny's irooworks naturally tock a
proportion of the coal output but coal wae supplied to other iron
manufacburers asz well.

*THE COAY FAMINE'

The years from 1867 %o 1870 were depressed ones for the coal
trade of the Wigan dis¥rict: stocks were built wp on pit banke and
wharves, prices were extremely low and subsequently wege reductions
were enacted. Indeed many pifts were working short ftime, whieh in

gome cases was half of normal working time. Yet despite this gloomy
picture of the area, the W Goal & Tron Gn.,,ggbwny'ﬂf contrast,
in both halves of 1%59 was dividing between £60, and £70,000 as

profit, am amount never reached in the years from 1875 to 1§EE.
Thiz wes achieved despite the fact that seweral pits were being run
at a loss, though it would have paid the company to close them, the
problems with leases and the difficulty presented by the reopening
of pits cnece closed, regsulted in them being centinued in work.

However, by 1870, demand had turned upwards with a subsequent
increase in coal cutput. At first the incressed demand wae met by
the large stocks which had previously accumulated st the pit banks.
The company at the most had 500,000 tons in stock. But graduslly
the stock melted away and by 1872 had vanished altogether. Its
cushioning effect was thus removed and the deficiemcy in cutput was

reflected in abnormally higg prices. By 2872, coal productiom had
not resched the level of 18&7F.

It is probable thet the Wigan Coal & Iron Co. was non-typical
during the ‘Coal Famine'. Having procured reasonsble sales during
the preceding period, the company was in a position to benefit
tremendously from the coal shortage end the subsequent high prices.
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Demand for the company's cosl was somewhat inelastic, being mainly
from the gasworks market, which expanded ams a result of significant
urban growth a2t this time, and domestic users in a variety of lecal
markets. This pleyed & grest part in its successful performance
during the depressed years from 1867 to 1870 and in its abnormally
high profite during 1872/3 i

Within the apparently favourable environment of the 'Coal Famine',
& paradoxidal gituation existed: in the two years of greatest
profit, 18Y2/3, output was decressing. Production was down on the
previous period even im spite of the addition of & new colliery,
gitusted in Hindley and Westhoughton which sdded spproximately
110,000 tons per smmum to the company's output.

The explanation of this phenomenon does not lie in labour
disputes a8 the collieris wages had increased: first by 15% in
1871, then by sdvences of 10 and 15% in 1872 with a final increase
of 10% in Jamuery 1873. Yet it is probable that this rise in wage
level was the crux of the preblem. Absenteeism became more marked
as wages rose; because the colliers were paid piece-rates, their
desired level of weges was subsequently reached more guickly. Their
wants were at a very simple level and were easily satisfied by the
local beershop and similar amenities. Thus in the mejority of cases,
it is extreme doubtful whether their cultural enviromnment provided
sufficient incentive to stay déwn the pits for longer pericds,
thereby rasising output and enlarging their wage packet.

The labour problem was not just confined ¥¢ absenteeism as
there was in addition great difficulty in obtaining lsbour teo work
pits that were being started at this time. Constant reference was
made in the Chairmsn's reperts of 1872/3 sbout the problem of
finding labour for a new pit at Westhoughton and a pumping pit at
Aspull. The latber wes an impertant innmovation ses it comcentrated
the work of several pumping establishments, which drained the
Cannel and King Coal mines to the east of Wigan, thereby making
the plant more efficient; the pit at Westhoughten was cpened wp on
land leased from the tristees of the Duke of Bridgewater.

Given these adverse factors, it is possible that the firm
could have increased the productivity of each unit of lsbour and
thereby its outpul, by the greater use of machimery. Underground
machinery was applied more extensively than ever before to reduce
the numbers necessary for the hsulage of coal, thugs malking more men
availeble for hewing the cosl. But the hoped for increase in cutput
wag not forthcoming. Some efforte were made to cut the coal by
machine but there were so many difficulties to overcome that this
had little success.

The 'Coal Femine' wes & bemporsry phenomenon. Ey 1874 prices
and profit margins were be ing t¢ fall and the descent was
beginning intc the era of the so-called 'Great Depressicn'.Yet the
years of the famine had given the Wigan Ceal & Irom Co. a glimpee
of the opportunity that might have beckoned if the demand had not
turned down %o such a dispstrous extent. Higher wages and the
shortege of labour gave fthe company an incentive towsrds mechanissation
to improve productivity. But the incentive was only short-lived,
the mineowners regained There extremely streng bargeining position
with the subsequent aslackening in the demand for labour and were thus
enabled to keep weges low.. Given that the labour shortage had
continued, the company night have persevered with its e
towards grester mechanisation of the mining processes, thereby
becoming more capital intensive and more productive.




From 1874 the major theme of the company's history wes one
of declining profit margins snd dividend payments. During the
'Coal Famine', the company hed regularly been placing between 20
and 30% of their profits in = Heserve Fund. Prom 1874, this trend
was reversed; in order to bolster up profits the Reserve Fund was
congtantly reided.

The traditiomal picture of this'Great Depression' was as
follows: the sudden, but tempo boom of 1872/3 snd the steady
drop into slump thereafter, occasionally relieved by definate, but
temporary, revivels, as in 1881/2.

From about 1888, the coal trade began to pick up again from
the effects of the 'Great Depression' discussed in the section
above. Indeed the Wigan Coal & Tron Co. had felt the benefit of
three new projecte; a£:ning new pits at Alexsndra Pit, Wigaen,
Sovereign Pit at West Leigh and enother new pit at Westhoughton.
These had been started about 1872/5 end from now until the end of
the nineteenth century no new shafts were sunk but several shafts
were sunk on the sites of clder gits- Blundell's Penberton Colliery
sank the King end Queen Pits in 1870, the shefts at the Taylor and
Giants Hall collieries were sunk on the sites of the old Tunnel
and Billy pits respectively. In 19071 the sinking of the shafis at
Victoria pite in Btandish began. This wss the last colliery to be
sunk in the ares which I have discussed.

Before 1 contnue with the narrstive concerning the history
of the coalfield in the twentieth century, I hsve provided a listh
of collieries in 1900 giving the perish in which it wes sited, the
name of the company cperating it snd the numbers employed there.
Also provided is a similer list showing the situstion in 1918.
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Colliery
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LIST OF COLLIERIES IN 1900

Parish

EICEERSHAW

HATGH
WIGAN

WIGAN
WIGAN
WIGAN

WIGAN
ASHTON

BAMBURTONG

o din

HATGH
WIGAH

BILLINGE

-

ELACERCD

COFFULL

HAIGE
COFPULL

ELACKRCD
ICBSTOCK

HEunbers
emplo

elow above

114
232
25()
200

577
50

56
511
159

169
179

192

I
na
&

i

N, 8

129

219

24

268

9C
26

15

118

14
36

7

b
146
08

30

Q'Erﬂt ors

AEBRAMN COAL Co. LID.

WIGAN COAL & IRCN Co.

ALLTARCE CCATL & CANNELL
Co. LID

HENRY ATHERTOH, 5 PARK
CRESCENT, PARK RD. WIGANW

CROMPTON & SHAWCROBS I4D.
PLATT ERTOGE, WIGAN

JOHN SCOWCROFT & Co. 1OD.
HIKDLEY GHEEN

"
Ll

GARSWOOD COAT & IRON
Co. LTD

WIGAN COAL & IRON Co.

CROSS, TETIEY & Co. IOTD
BAMFURTIONG

i
LU
L1

WIGAN COAT, & TRON Co.

ATMOND & STONE
BIRCHENEDS COLLTERY,
DOWHALL: GREEN

J. ATHERTON GHREENFIELD
HOUSE, BILLINGE

WILLTAM HITTOH, BIRCHLEY
HALL, COLLIERY, BILLIKGE

ETSPEAM HATT. COILIERY
Co. ITD

WILLIAM WOODS AND BONS
SC0T TANE COLLIERIES
ELACERCD

BLATHSCOUGH COTIIERY
Co. IMD

WIGAN CCAT: & TRON Co.

BETDGE HOUBE COLLIERY
Co. IOD

WIGAN COAT. & TRON Co.

ERINSOF HALIL COAT
Co. IID
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ERCOMFIELD STANDISH
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UNSWORTH & COWBURK ,
HINDLEY GREEN

WIGAN COAL & IRON Co.

WINSTANLEY COLLIERIES
Co. LID.

EROWN HEATH COLLIERY
Co. ILID

BRINN HALI COLLIERY
Co. IOD

JONATHAY BLUNDELL £
S0HS

WIGAN {E}I{-& IRON Co.

GARSWCOD COAL & IRON
Co. IID

ROSEBRIDGE & DOUGLAS
BANE COLLTERY Co. LD
1]

FEARGBCHN & HKHOWLES
COAL & IRON Co. LID
2]

CROMPTON & SHAWCROSS LID

LATHAM BREGS. ROSEERIDGE
COLLIERY
WIGAN COAL & IRON Co.

RICHARD EVAES & Co.
CROMPION & SHAWCEROSS

WIGAN CANNELL COLLYERY
I :

JOHEN SCOWCROPT & Co. ILTD
HINDLEY GEEEN

GARSWOOD HALL COLLIERIES
Co. ITD

LU
2]
4
1]

WIGAN COAT. & IRCN Co.

ETCHART EVANS & Co.
"

WIGAN COAL & IRON Co.
"

ELIEREECK COLLIERIES
12D, BANK CHAMEERS, WIGAN




HINDIEY FIELD WIGAR
EINDLEY GREEN 6/— WIGAK
HINDLEY HALL WIGAN
INCE PARK LANE ASHTON
JOHNR STANDISH
EING COAL BLACEROD
EING PIT WIGAN
EIRKIESS Nos 1 & 2 ASPULL
LADIES IANE Nos 1, HINDIEY
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LAKGTREE STANDISH
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HIFDLEY FIELD COAL
Co. LTD
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COAL & TEON Co. LID

GARSWOOD COAL & IRON
Co. 1IID

WIGAN COAL & TRON Co.
WIGAN COAL & IRON Co.

JONATHAN BIUNDELL &
SOHS

WIGAN COAL & TRON Co.
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WIGAN COAL & TRON Co.

WIRSTANTEY COLLIERIES
Co. LTD '

WINSTANLEY COLLIEETES
Co.1AD

WIGAN COAL & TRON Co.
WIGAN COAL & IRON Co.

GARBWOOD COAL & IRON
Co. ITD

SMAN TANE BRICK & OOAL
Co. EINDLEY GREEN

MOSS HALL COAL Co. 17D
i
"

CROSS, TETIEY & Co. LTD
EIHEUEIQEE '

CROSS, TETLEY & Co. LID
BAMFURIONG

WIGAN COAL & IROH Co.
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WIGAN COAL & TRON Co.
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COAT: & IEEH Co. 1D

Ao

LAME & MOORE, WIGAN
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HORIEY No 2
« 3 NORIEY COLLIERY WiGaN
NORLEY Heo & WIGAN 206 53 ORBEELL COAL Co. WIGAN
" 5 = 122 2k "
NUTTALL WIGAN 9 6 BLACELEDGE EBROS !
. CHABCERY BT. WIGAN
OREELL Ho 2 WIGAN 155 1 OFRELL: COAL Co. WIGAN
. 2 2 156 &2 w
K B . 7 3 .
PARK WIGAN 16 9  CROMPTON & SEAWCROSS
FEMEERTON HOUSE  WELCH WHITTIE 161 22  JAMES BARKER & SONS

WELCH WHITTLE CHORLEY

FENNIGATE HIRDIEY 2 2 WIGAW COAL & ITRON Co.
PEWFALL Nos 3i& & ASHTON 187 26 RICHARD EVANS & Co.
FROSPECT Hos 1 & 2 BTANDISE 280 €1 WIGAN COAL & IRON Co.
QUEEN FIT WIGAN 505 35 H-Tgmm BLUNDELL &
ROBIN HILL STANDISE 3 4  WIGAN COAL & IRON Co.
ROSEERIDGE WIGAN 143 51  IATHOM BROS. ROSEERTDGE
COLLIERT
SEVEN FEET WIGAN 211 90  CROMPTON & SHAWCROUSS
SNYDALE HALL WESTHOUGHTON 61 15  WESTHOUGHTON COAL &
CANNEL Co. LID
STONEHOUSE WIGAN 16 2 JOHN SCOWCROPT & Co. IAD
HINDIEY GREEN
THE BARE No 1 ABHTON 35% 69 J. & R. STONE, ASHTON
11 2 i ] 3?!?’ 95 | ]
TRAFFORD WIGAN 258 100 CROMPTON & SHAWCROSS
VICTORTA WIGAN 30 &1 WIGAN COAL & TRON Co.
VICTORIA BICKERSHAW 272 55 }Emm COLLIERY Co.
WELCH WHITTLE WELCH WHITTLE 274 95 gu::mcmmﬂ COLLIERY
G- LTD
WESTHOUGHTON No & BIACKROD WILLTAM WOODS & SONS
183 9y ~ BS00T LANE COLLIERY
E E_ ™ mw
n ﬁ ] n
WESTHOUGHTON NEW WESTHOUGHTON 428 91 WESTHOUGHTON COAL &
Hos 1 & 2 CANNEL Co. IAD
WESTHOUGHTOR WESTHOUGHTON 21 10 WESTHOUGHTON COAL &
DIAMOND COLLIERY CANNEL Co. ITD
WIGAN JUNCTION WIGAN 262 87 WIGAN JUNCTION
COLLIERY Co. LI, ABRAN
WOODSHAW ASPULL 105 21  WIGAN COATL & IRON Co.
WORSLEY IMESHES WIGAN 878 207 WORSLEY MESHNES COLLIERY
Hos -1 & 2 Ca.
WORTHINGTON HALL WIGAN 1186 %0  WORTHINGTON HATL COAT

Nos 1 & 2 &  CANNEL Co.




LIST OF COLLIERTES TN 1918
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THE WIGAN COALFTELD IN THE TWENTIETH CENTURY

Aga: productive centre, the Wigan Area began to reach its
apex in the early years of the twentieth century and possibly wes
at its best between the ars 1906 to 71914. The expansion in the
early years was a natural consequence of the increase in demand,
and the contraction which set in during the 191418 war was a
consequence of the exhaustion of the better seams in the mere
eapily accesgible areas.

. During this ers cosl wes got by hand and individual small

Colliery Compeny fortunes fluctumated rapidly s= coal wes won and
lﬂstlthraugh hazards such as underground water and geological
problems.

After the First World War there wes a gradual drift towards
machine mining; steel roof supperts gredually replaced wooden
supports and steel pit tube replaced wooden ones. Pit ponies were
replaced by mechanical haulage snd electric safety lamps were
graduslly introduced.

The generul trend of industrial ente ise wes consistently
ssive throughout the lives of the various collieries and
at most of the collieries, mining mschinery wes introduced and
efforts were mede Fo keep such machinery in line with the latest
developments. An example of this wes experimental development of
tgﬂ Meco-Moore Cutter Loader at Chisnall Hall Colliery, Coppull, in
1955 . '

The Wigan Coal & Tron Co. LE@., the Pearson & Enowles Coal &
Irom Co. Ltd and the Garswood Hall Celliery Co. I4d hed close
connections with iron and steel firme, end certain developments
at the collieries were intimestely linked with those of the irom and
gteel industry.

The collier in those days had o purchase all his tocls for
his work, such es picks, spades, hammer, wedges, powder, tallies,
lamps and oil. There was ususlly a steores shop in the village
where all these were kepi. The collier would make cartridges from
brown paper at home and fill them with loose powder. If the drill
holes were damp in any way he would collect gresse from axle boxes
and smesy the cartridges with it as protectien.

In the year 19530 the Wigen Coal & Tron Co.Ltd and the Pearson
and Knowles Coasl & Trom Co. Ltd merged to form the Wigen Cosl
Corporation Itd and this was the largest group in the Wigan ares.

Gradually the capitel expenditure on the collieries decreased,
aﬁg 1little was spent even after the sbove smalgamstions hed taken
placs.

This wee the posibion im 1947 when, as we all Imow the
coglmines were nstionalised. The progressz of the Wi area after
Vesting Date, when it was Imown as the No. 2 (Wigan) Area, is
told in the next section
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THE WIGAN COATFIEID AFTER RATIOHALIZATION

thﬁ the coal mines were natiomalized in 1947 the number
gi ﬂillllrill in the Wigan Coglfield was 17, these varying widely
size.

The statement below indicates the size of fhe collieries
with relation te the aversge weekly output cm a salesble basis.

Tons per week galeable

UHDER ™000 - ELLEREECE
OVER 1000 end under 2000 - JOHN, ALEXANDRA snd ALBRERT
"o2000 " " 8000 £ GIANTS HALL, WELCH WHITTIE
and MAINS and WIGAW JUNCTION
"OA000 " T 6000 = VICRORTIA, &HATMOSS
" E000 ® " 8000 - CHISHALL HALL and MAYPOIE

The other collieries in the Wigan Area were; Summersales colliery
at Pemberton, Albert pit at Bickershaw, Garswood Enll, Iinﬂgltt,
Long Lane and Park.

Btand of Te. ue

The jority of the working was AdvVameing Tongwall. Machinery
for coal nzgging and conveying umsupsdd exfensively and s number
of the collieries were spproaching 100% mechanization. The

technigue of the ing system employedwds comparable with
cther advancing 1 gystem in sress where similar geolog g;l
difricultied are pregented.

In the early of Hatiomalization, at a few points, the
Americen system of p ing with subsequent pillar extraction

was adopted but it cammot be claimed that this system was new as
the Wigsn area is honeycombed with isclated patches of cosl which
have been cuk out into pillars with a nubau%u-nt total or partial
extraction. The area Being excessively faulted, and, coupled with
the extraciicn of the seams which has prﬂclidla prnntiﬂn 1y over
the whole area in s¢ meny horizons, seemed to preclude fubure
development by the horizon methods, except for perhaps limifted
patiches of coal.

Effects of the War-time combrol

Probably the main effect of the War in the Wigan area, was
to restriet genersally, and in a few instances to stup completely
all dlfﬂlﬂpmanﬁ work. The effectes of this was to increase the
difficulty ¢f ipdividual to maintain lnathin: like a censistent
output now thet the reserves they held in the early days of the
War were exhausted. Minor development proceeded at all the cullinrin;,
extraction followed immediately behind and it was a considerable
time before the pitis could be got into such a position as to have
reagonable reserves in hand.

Competitive Tndustries

During the War years, all industries which started locally
were mainly of a munitions character. Bince the War the sbove
premises have been turned to produce vardous types of goods; a case
in point is fthe Bradley Munitionms Works at Standish, ome part of
which has been turned to rayon and nylon works and thn other part
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to canned food preparation. (Heinz)

In Hindley Green, a large works has been erected to manufacture
ssbestos goods and slso rubber belting etc. (Turner Erothers Asbestos)

Between Wigan and Eryn a large new factory was erected. This
cng built te manufecture Tayon pocds for Messrs. Courtaulds.

In the Pemberton sree a number of new premises have been
erected To tender for light industries of wvearious types.

The most serious competitors for labour from the No. 2 (Wigan)
ares of sdult mining personnel were the two neighbouring aress,
the Ho. 1 (Manchester) and No. % (5%. Helens).

Water Ffroblgms
Underground water presented a serious problem in most of the

area and over many years much thought has been given to devising
methoeds of control.

%he Great Hoigh Sough was en importent contribution to the
gsolution of the Underground weter problem in the extensive csnnel
workinga of the Heigh and Aspull districts.

More recent work wes the plugg of shafts to safeguard
existing workings, . and to concentrate the meke to cenbrsl pumping
stations &% which it can be more efficiently and economically
conkrolled. Such central pumping stations were at Victoris Pit
in the Ho. 1 Bub Area, Hnygﬂge, Low Hall shaft snd Igce Moss in
the No. 2 Sub Ares.

Particular care was required in many of the workings and 211
new development required careful investigstion to ensure that no
danger of breaking inte water-bearing old workings could srise.
Exercise of the special precauticns sgeinct the risk wag carried
out in all known or doubtful cases.

Following heavy rain, several of the shallower collieries,
for instence, Alexandra and Welch Whittle, were extremely wet. Cn
cccasions this caused much discomfort and inconvenience to the
employees, as well as introducing difficulty in strata control,
the roof, floor and sides of the workings frequently being saturated
%o the extent of being water-logged.

The quantity of water pumped in the Sub Aress veried with
the seasons, but the average weekly quantities during 1947 are
given below; -

No.1 Sub Area Heo. 2 Sub Ares
18,071,820 gallons 15,002,400 gallons

The gradient at the Nerthern endi of the Coslfield is
relatively easy but to the South and East of Wigan incresses
considerably, being probably at its meximum at the Maypole and
¥Wigen Junction cellieries where gradients of 1 in % and even 1 in 2%
wara not infreguent.

The strata conditions were varied. In certain parts of the
Area and in certain mines there was little or no convergence on the
roadways and t0 a very limited extent on the faces. In other parts of
the Area, convergence both ‘on rosdways and faces was much more
proncunced. This incresse in convergence rate seemed %o have some
relation to the depth of the workings but it is possible that it
was more pronounced in steeper measures, from The experience gained




at the Meypole and Wigan Junction c¢ellieries. This feature seemed
to obtain both in roadways and faces, wide work earess and strait
Toads of pillaring areas.

At neticonelisetion there were, &s has been sald, 17 cellieries
operating in the Wigan area. In aﬂﬁitiuh three new installations
were put inte actiom to work cosl in ereas previously unworkable

due to excessive wabter makes but, since Vest Date, cleared of
this problem by efficient p ing. These inat tions were, in

arder of opening, Standish Hall Drift (1950), Robin Hill Drift (1953,
and Dairy Colliery, which wes a former Wigan Coal Corporation
colliery, closed down before 1 . 1 . 47 bubt re—opened in 1954.

However, in the early 1950's the s of exheustion mnd
run-down of the Wigsen Coalfield became evident. Im April, 1955,
John Pit mear Wigen closed down, closely followed by ILeng ILane in
April, 1955 and Alexandre in June, 1955. The next collieries %o
close were Victoria (June) and Garswood Hall (August) both 1958.

In March 1959 Haypole closed along with Welch Whittle in December
of that year and in 1960 Mains, Park (both June) snd Iendgete (Sept)
were shut down. Giants Hall and Standish EHall collieries in January
and July of 1961 closed next followed by Wigan Junction in Hay
1962, Dai and Moss in Hovember 1902 and Robin Hill in Hevember
1968. The t four collieries to close were Ellerbeck in A

1965, Albert, NHovember 1965, Bummersales in March ‘1966 and the las®
of all Chismall Hall in Merch 1967.




